
EirGrid   noun  The independent electricity  
Transmission System Operator (TSO) and 
wholesale Market Operator in Ireland. 
A state-owned company, its role is to  
deliver quality connection, transmission  
and market services to generators, suppliers  
and customers utilising the high voltage  
electricity system, and to put in place the grid  
infrastructure required to support Ireland’s  
social and economic development.
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It �s w�th great pleasure that I present 
the first Annual Report for E�rGr�d as 
the �ndependent Transm�ss�on System 
Operator (TSO) and wholesale  
Market Operator.

The vest�ng of E�rGr�d on 0� July 
2006 s�gnalled a new era �n the Ir�sh 
electr�c�ty �ndustry, enabl�ng greater 
transparency �n an �ncreas�ngly 
compet�t�ve market for all customers. 
The recent publ�cat�on of the 
Government Wh�te Paper on Energy 
Pol�cy has h�ghl�ghted a number of areas 
wh�ch emphas�se the �mportance of 
E�rGr�d’s role �n develop�ng the market 
�nto the future. These �nclude the 
transfer of ownersh�p of the transm�ss�on 
assets to E�rGr�d, fac�l�tat�on of new 
generat�on through, amongst other 
th�ngs, development of a state-owned 
landbank and a ser�es of �n�t�at�ves to 
�mprove generat�on adequacy. We look 
forward to address�ng the challenges 
that these add�t�onal respons�b�l�t�es 
br�ng and, �n so do�ng, enhanc�ng 
secur�ty of supply, susta�nab�l�ty and 
compet�t�veness �n the Ir�sh electr�c�ty 
market.

Our focus �n 2006 was on ensur�ng a 
seamless transfer of funct�ons from the 
former ESB Nat�onal Gr�d to E�rGr�d, 
w�th m�n�mal bus�ness d�srupt�on. Th�s 
was ach�eved due, �n no small part, 
to the efforts of the E�rGr�d staff and 
management team. It was hearten�ng 
to see the h�gh level of transfer of staff 
from ESB Nat�onal Gr�d to E�rGr�d, as 
the cumulat�ve exper�ence of our people 
prov�des a very sol�d base �n tackl�ng the 
challenges ahead.

Demand cont�nues to grow, w�th a new 
peak exper�enced on �9 December 2006 
at 5,035 megawatts (MW). The use of 
renewable sources grew dur�ng the year, 
w�th generat�on from renewable sources 
const�tut�ng over 9% of total electr�c�ty 
demand. We w�ll cont�nue to meet the 
challenge of �ntegrat�ng renewables at 
an accelerated pace to fulfill nat�onal 
and Government targets.

Our financ�al performance �n the year 
exceeded expectat�ons, return�ng an 
underly�ng profit of €3m wh�ch was 
h�ghly sat�sfactory. 

There was s�gn�ficant development of 
the transm�ss�on network through new 
�nfrastructure projects, w�th progress on 
the second North-South Interconnector 
and the effic�ent connect�on of a 
number of new generators. Furthermore, 
substant�al progress was made on the 
establ�shment of the S�ngle Electr�c�ty 
Market (SEM), scheduled to commence 
later th�s year. 

2006 was a year of progress. I would 
l�ke to take th�s opportun�ty to thank, 
for the�r s�gn�ficant contr�but�on to 
the vest�ng of E�rGr�d, my predecessor, 
Professor Edd�e O’Kelly, and former 
colleagues Eamon Cah�ll and Maur�ce 
Holly, whose terms on the E�rGr�d Board 
concluded dur�ng the year. I would 
also l�ke to thank the M�n�ster for 
Commun�cat�ons, Mar�ne and Natural 
Resources, Mr. Noel Dempsey, for h�s 
leadersh�p and tenac�ty �n the vest�ng of 
E�rGr�d and the publ�cat�on of the Wh�te 
Paper on Energy Pol�cy. The ongo�ng 
support of h�s offic�als �s also greatly 

apprec�ated, as �s the contr�but�on of 
the Comm�ss�on for Energy Regulat�on. 
F�nally, I would l�ke to recogn�se the 
work of all my colleagues on the Board, 
for the�r unquest�onable comm�tment 
and contr�but�on.  

The energy sector w�ll no doubt 
cont�nue to dom�nate the econom�c 
and env�ronmental agenda for some 
t�me to come. I, on behalf of the Board 
and staff of E�rGr�d, would l�ke to 
assure all customers and stakeholders 
of our comm�tment to support them �n 
the years ahead and to cont�nue our 
development towards becom�ng a world 
class Transm�ss�on System Operator and 
wholesale Market Operator.

Bern�e Gray
Cha�rperson
�8 Apr�l 2007
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Staff members Albert Donohoe and Liam Griffin at the Oval, EirGrid’s future offices



2006 was a year of major s�gn�ficance 
as �t marked the transfer of the 
Transm�ss�on System Operator (TSO) 
and Market Operator funct�ons from 
ESB Nat�onal Gr�d to E�rGr�d. The close 
co-operat�on of all part�es and stakeholders 
�n complet�ng the Transfer Scheme and 
the Infrastructure Agreement between 
E�rGr�d and ESB enabled E�rGr�d to be 
vested as TSO from 0� July 2006.  

Throughout the year, and through 
the trans�t�on process, we cont�nued 
to operate the transm�ss�on system 
securely and safely. As Market Operator 
of the current b�lateral power market 
we operated the market effect�vely 
and effic�ently. We also played a major 
role, w�th our partner System Operator 
Northern Ireland (SONI) and w�th the 
Regulatory Author�t�es and market 
part�c�pants, �n develop�ng the all-�sland 
S�ngle Electr�c�ty Market (SEM). The 
plann�ng, development, upgrad�ng and 
ma�ntenance of the transm�ss�on network 
�nfrastructure cont�nued apace, w�th a 
number of major m�lestones ach�eved.

EirGrid’s Role and Functions

E�rGr�d does not generate, buy or sell 
power. Our role �n the �ndustry �s to 
operate the transm�ss�on system and 
wholesale market �n a fa�r and equ�table 
manner for all part�c�pants. 

E�rGr�d’s �ndependence assures all market 
part�c�pants and stakeholders of a level 
play�ng field. We are comm�tted to 
develop�ng, ma�nta�n�ng and operat�ng 
a safe, secure, rel�able, econom�cal and 
effic�ent transm�ss�on system, for the 
benefit of all electr�c�ty customers. 

We are ded�cated to operat�ng �n a 
progress�ve, effic�ent, and customer-
focused way, del�ver�ng qual�ty 
connect�on, transm�ss�on and market 
serv�ces to our customers and putt�ng 
�n place the gr�d �nfrastructure requ�red 
to support Ireland’s soc�al and econom�c 
development.

Financial Performance

E�rGr�d’s statutory profit for the year 
was €�2.6m, w�th an underly�ng 
profit, el�m�nat�ng the �mpact of 
regulatory over recover�es, of €3m. Th�s 
represented a very sat�sfactory financ�al 
performance for the Company �n �ts 
�n�t�al per�od s�nce vest�ng.

Security of Supply

Wh�le overall generat�on ava�lab�l�ty 
was lower than expected dur�ng the 
year, secur�ty of supply was ma�nta�ned 
and marg�ns were sat�sfactory. The 
peak load of 5,035MW occurred at 
�7.30 on Tuesday �9 December 2006 
– th�s was met w�th suffic�ent capac�ty 
�n reserve to cater for the loss of 
any large generat�on un�t. The t�mely 
comm�ss�on�ng of new power plants 
at Tynagh and Augh�n�sh Alum�na �n 
early 2006 contr�buted s�gn�ficantly to 
secur�ty of supply marg�ns, as d�d the 
standby arrangements that we entered 
�nto w�th SONI �n relat�on to the Moyle 
Interconnector.

The Generat�on Adequacy Report (GAR), 
�ssued annually by E�rGr�d, takes a 
seven year v�ew of secur�ty of supply 
�n the l�ght of expected load growth, 
ex�st�ng generator performance and 

planned add�t�ons to the system. The 
GAR publ�shed �n November 2006 
documented the expected transformat�on 
of Ireland’s generat�on portfol�o over the 
next seven years, dr�ven by convent�onal 
plant closures and the ant�c�pated 
deployment of large amounts of w�nd 
powered generat�on. G�ven that there are 
a number of new plants �n development 
the s�tuat�on �s manageable. However, 
the r�sk of premature plant closure or 
unforeseen plant fa�lure prov�des the 
greatest r�sk of supply fa�lure �n the 
short to med�um term.

Renewable Energy

2006 was a year of major ach�evement 
�n connect�ng renewable generat�on and 
ended w�th approx�mately 750MW of 
w�nd capac�ty connected, br�ng�ng the 
total amount of all forms of renewable 
generat�on capac�ty to over �,000MW for 
the first t�me. Generat�on from renewable 
sources const�tuted over 9% of total 
electr�c�ty demand and Ireland �s firmly 
on target to meet the object�ve of �5% 
of renewables by 20�0.

The all-island Single Electricity Market 

The new all-�sland SEM for electr�c�ty, 
scheduled to ‘go l�ve’ �n November 2007, 
w�ll br�ng together the two wholesale 
electr�c�ty markets on the �sland of 
Ireland, creat�ng a new s�ngle market 
for the wholesale trad�ng of electr�c�ty. 
Th�s w�ll mean that, for the first t�me, 
generators and suppl�ers of electr�c�ty on 
the �sland w�ll be able to trade all the�r 
electr�c�ty on a da�ly bas�s, regardless 
of locat�on. It w�ll prov�de for the 
further development of a compet�t�ve, 

Chief Executive’s Report
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susta�nable and rel�able wholesale 
market.
 
The Regulatory Author�t�es North and 
South have respons�b�l�ty for develop�ng 
the Trad�ng and Settlement Code for the 
SEM, wh�le the two System Operators 
– E�rGr�d and SONI – are respons�ble 
for develop�ng the SEM systems and 
processes and establ�sh�ng the S�ngle 
Market Operator (SMO), the organ�sat�on 
requ�red to run the market.

Grid Development

In 2006 the first five year Transm�ss�on 
Development Plan was publ�shed  
follow�ng an extens�ve consultat�on 
process w�th all stakeholders. Th�s 
plan sets out the gr�d �nfrastructure 
development projects requ�red over the 
per�od 2006 to 20�0 to keep pace w�th 
the rap�dly develop�ng economy and to 
ensure a rel�able power supply to all 
parts of Ireland. 

Dur�ng 2006 a number of �mportant 
gr�d development projects were 
completed. S�gn�ficant progress was 
made �n prov�d�ng connect�ons for w�nd 
and thermal generators and for large 
�ndustr�al customers.

A project of strateg�c nat�onal 
�mportance �s the development of a 
second North-South Interconnector. 
E�rGr�d �s develop�ng th�s project 
together w�th NIE �n Northern Ireland. 
Good progress was made �n 2006 �n 
defin�ng the scope of the project and �n 
prepar�ng for a deta�led subm�ss�on to 
the plann�ng author�t�es. The expected 
complet�on date for th�s project �s 20�2.

S�gn�ficant work �s also underway on the 
other major �nterconnector project, a 
subsea l�nk from Ireland to Great Br�ta�n.

Safety and the Environment 

In E�rGr�d we are keenly aware of our 
safety obl�gat�ons to the publ�c, to 
our employees and to th�rd part�es �n 
any way affected by our operat�ons. 
We have put �n place a comprehens�ve 
Safety Management System wh�ch, �n 
June 2006, was successfully cert�fied by 
Lloyds Reg�ster Qual�ty Assurance (LRQA) 
to OHSAS �800� standard.

In relat�on to the �mpact of our 
act�v�t�es on the env�ronment, E�rGr�d 
�s comm�tted to carry�ng out these 

act�v�t�es �n a susta�nable way. As part 
of the development process for new 
gr�d �nfrastructure projects we carry 
out deta�led Env�ronmental Impact 
Stud�es (EIS) wh�ch assess potent�al 
�mpacts on flora, fauna, archaeology and 
her�tage, v�sual landscape and health. 
These stud�es are made ava�lable to the 
plann�ng author�t�es.

Wh�le electr�c�ty �s a conven�ent and 
clean form of energy at po�nt of use, �ts 
generat�on from thermal fuel sources 
causes em�ss�ons, and �t �s v�tal that 
�t �s generated and used effic�ently. 
We have for many years engaged �n 
demand-s�de management campa�gns 
a�med at large �ndustr�al users, �nclud�ng 
our work on the W�nter Peak Demand 
Reduct�on Scheme, wh�ch cut overall 
Ir�sh energy demand s�gn�ficantly dur�ng 
w�nter 2006. In the last two years, 
we extended that work �nto prov�d�ng 
pract�cal energy sav�ng adv�ce to all 
customers, through consumer advert�s�ng 
and our �nvolvement �n the Power of 
One nat�onal campa�gn launched by the 
M�n�ster for Commun�cat�ons, Mar�ne and 
Natural Resources �n 2006. In our own 
offices we encourage staff to use energy 
w�sely and to recycle.

Looking Ahead

In 2006 we undertook a strateg�c 
plann�ng exerc�se to develop a clear 
v�s�on for the Company go�ng forward 
and to �dent�fy our strateg�c pr�or�t�es.
These are to:

�.  Consol�date our pos�t�on as an 
effect�ve and effic�ent TSO and Market 
Operator del�ver�ng qual�ty serv�ces to 
our customers.

2.  Grow through major �nvestments 
�n the all-�sland SEM and �n the 
proposed East-West Interconnector.

3.  Develop our capab�l�ty to take on the 
major challenges fac�ng E�rGr�d and 
the �ndustry �n the years ahead.

Key �nfrastructure projects of strateg�c 
nat�onal �mportance are the second 
North-South Interconnector and the 
East-West Interconnector l�nk�ng 
Ireland’s transm�ss�on system to that of 
Great Br�ta�n. In part�cular, we welcome 
the Government’s dec�s�on that E�rGr�d 
w�ll own the East-West Interconnector 
and we are work�ng closely w�th the 
Comm�ss�on for Energy Regulat�on (CER) 
to develop th�s �mportant project.

The arr�val of the all-�sland SEM �n 2007 
w�ll be a major step �n the evolut�on of 
the electr�c�ty �ndustry on the �sland. 
We are comm�tted, �n conjunct�on w�th 
our partners SONI, to ensur�ng the new 
SMO �s establ�shed along w�th all of 
the necessary systems and processes 
to enable the market to commence 
operat�ng �n November.

In late 2006 we conducted a 
qual�tat�ve and quant�tat�ve survey of 
our customers and stakeholders �n order 
to help us �dent�fy areas for �mprov�ng 
our serv�ces. We w�ll be roll�ng out a 
Customer Serv�ce Improvement Plan 
dur�ng 2007 and we w�ll be work�ng 
w�th our customers and stakeholders 
to ensure that we are cont�nually 
�mprov�ng the serv�ce we offer.

We welcome the Wh�te Paper on 
Energy Pol�cy publ�shed �n March 
2007 wh�ch sets out the Government’s 
pol�cy to enhance secur�ty of supply, 
susta�nab�l�ty and compet�t�veness. We 
w�ll be work�ng w�th all stakeholders to 
g�ve effect to Government pol�cy.

Our People

The performance th�s year by E�rGr�d 
�s due pr�mar�ly to the contr�but�on of 
our staff. We are pr�v�leged to have a 
d�verse workforce w�th colleagues from 
�5 d�fferent countr�es. Our employees 
are h�ghly sk�lled, w�th qual�ficat�ons 
and expert�se across a d�verse range of 
d�sc�pl�nes. We are comm�tted to work�ng 
w�th our staff through a proact�ve 
partnersh�p process �n order to ensure 
that E�rGr�d �s a great place to work.

Dermot Byrne
Ch�ef Execut�ve
�8 Apr�l 2007
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The vest�ng of E�rGr�d as TSO on 0� July 
2006 has transformed the scale of the 
Company’s financ�al respons�b�l�t�es, 
hence no comparat�ves are �ncluded 
above. The Company’s revenue �s 
pr�mar�ly der�ved from the regulated 
Transm�ss�on Use of System tar�ff, a 
charge payable by all users of the h�gh 
voltage transm�ss�on system. 

D�rect costs cons�st of:
•  The regulated charge payable to ESB 

as owner of the transm�ss�on system. 
•  The cost of purchas�ng from 

generators a range of serv�ces 
requ�red for the secure operat�on of 
the system.

•  Constra�nt costs payable when the 
secure operat�on of the system 
requ�res changes to be �mposed 
on the market based schedules of 
generators. Th�s category of cost can 
be volat�le �n nature.

•  The costs of �mplement�ng a range of 
energy demand reduct�on �n�t�at�ves.

Other operat�ng costs �nclude employee 
costs, deprec�at�on and certa�n corporate 
costs.

Regulation

E�rGr�d’s act�v�t�es are regulated by 
the Comm�ss�on for Energy Regulat�on 
(CER). In advance of the tar�ff year 
E�rGr�d subm�ts to the CER a forecast of 
customer demand and of �ts operat�ng 
costs for the year ahead. Follow�ng a 
deta�led rev�ew process the CER �ssues 
a formal determ�nat�on of the allowed 
costs. As w�th any forecast there can 
be var�at�ons between the project�ons 
and the actual cost outturn, result�ng 

�n regulatory under or over recover�es. 
Any such under or over recover�es are 
adjusted for �n the pr�ce determ�nat�ons 
for subsequent years. Th�s can g�ve 
r�se to s�gn�ficant volat�l�ty �n the 
reported statutory earn�ngs of E�rGr�d, 
as account�ng regulat�ons do not perm�t 
results to be smoothed through the 
ant�c�pat�on of under or over recover�es.

Capitalisation of EirGrid

In accordance w�th Regulat�on �3 of SI 
��5 of European Commun�t�es (Internal 
Market �n Electr�c�ty) Regulat�ons 2000, 
as amended by SI 60 of European 
Commun�t�es (Internal Market �n 
Electr�c�ty) Regulat�ons 2005, (‘SI ��5’) 
E�rGr�d and ESB entered �nto a Transfer 
Scheme dated 0� July 2006. Under the 
terms of the Transfer Scheme E�rGr�d 
rece�ved a Cap�tal�sat�on Payment from 
ESB �n the amount of €67m, cons�st�ng 
of IT and telecommun�cat�ons assets 
w�th a value of €�7.5m and cash of 
€�9.5m.

Under the Transfer Scheme certa�n 
members of ESB staff transferred 
the�r employment to E�rGr�d and, �n 
accordance w�th Regulat�on �7(�3) of 
SI ��5, E�rGr�d assumed respons�b�l�ty 
for the pens�on ent�tlements of these 
transferr�ng employees. Us�ng the 
assumpt�ons outl�ned �n Note �5 and 
cons�stent w�th the methodology 
spec�fied �n IAS �9 Employee Benefits, 
E�rGr�d’s Actuary valued the l�ab�l�t�es 
transferred to the E�rGr�d Scheme at 
€33.7m.

Regulat�on �7(�3) of SI ��5 also 
spec�fied the bas�s on wh�ch assets 
would be transferred from the ESB 
Pens�on Scheme to the E�rGr�d Pens�on 
Scheme. The value of the assets 
transferred was €�3.3m. 

Results for the Year

As �nd�cated, E�rGr�d’s reported statutory 
results are subject to s�gn�ficant 
volat�l�ty. In the op�n�on of the D�rectors 
the most appropr�ate measure of 
E�rGr�d’s performance �s the underly�ng 
profit based on regulatory ent�tlement 
�.e. exclud�ng the effect of under or 
over recover�es. The calculat�on of the 
underly�ng profit �s shown above.

The underly�ng profit of €3m for 2006 
largely relates to sav�ngs ach�eved on 
other operat�ng costs and �t compares 
to a breakeven pos�t�on for the prev�ous 
year. Dur�ng 2005 E�rGr�d was prepar�ng 
to assume the respons�b�l�t�es of TSO and 
�ts staff and related costs were be�ng 
re�mbursed �n full by a regulated tar�ff. 

Cash on hand at the year end of €63.8m 
reflects the cash �nject�on rece�ved by 
E�rGr�d as part of the cap�tal�sat�on 
payment and also the cash �mpact of the 
regulatory over recover�es.

\m

Statutory profit �2.6

Deduct over recover�es  (9.6)

Underly�ng profit  3.0

\m

Revenue �39.9

D�rect costs �03.6

Other operat�ng costs 23.7

Statutory profit �2.6

Underly�ng profit 3.0

Calculation of underlying profit 2006Key Financial Highlights 2006

Financial Review



Power System Operation   noun The process of 
planning, analysing, monitoring and controlling 
the flows of power across the transmission 
system, scheduling and dispatching the output of 
power plants and ultimately ensuring the safe and 
secure operation of the power system 24 hours a 
day, 365 days a year.
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Staff members Deirdre Merriman and Sean Kearney at work in the EirGrid National Control Centre
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The safe, secure, rel�able, econom�cal 
and effic�ent operat�on of Ireland’s 
power system �s at the core of the work 
of E�rGr�d. 

From the Nat�onal Control Centre we 
mon�tor and control the flow of power 
across the h�gh voltage network, and 
�nstruct each of the large connected 
generat�ng un�ts on the level of output 
they are to produce on a m�nute by 
m�nute bas�s. Electr�c�ty cannot be 
stored �n bulk quant�t�es and must be 
ava�lable for use �nstantly where and 
when needed, so as demand �ncreases 
and reduces, the output of generators 
and the flows along the network are 
mon�tored and adjusted.

The system �s operated to prov�de 
secure suppl�es for customers, to 
ut�l�se renewable energy, to prov�de 
opportun�t�es for generators and 
suppl�ers to do bus�ness and to use 
the most econom�c generat�on m�x. It 
�nvolves h�ghly spec�al�sed IT systems 
and telecommun�cat�ons �nfrastructure 
w�th complete redundancy and backup 
fac�l�t�es to ensure cont�nu�ty �n case of 
any d�srupt�on or fault.

We have teams ded�cated to plann�ng 
the operat�on of the system to ensure 
that we cont�nuously del�ver the h�gh 
qual�ty suppl�es, �n terms of voltage and 
frequency as well as overall rel�ab�l�ty, 
as requ�red by all of our customers 
throughout the country.

Demand growth 

System demand cont�nued to grow 
strongly throughout 2006, w�th total 
energy consumpt�on for the year of 
approx�mately 27,000GWh (g�gawatt 
hours), up �.�8% on 2005. The 
max�mum system demand broke through 
the 5,000MW level for the first t�me, 
reach�ng 5,035MW on �9 December 2006 
(see Weekly Demand Peaks graph on  
next page).

Dur�ng the year two new large 
generat�ng stat�ons commenced full 
commerc�al operat�on. One, at Tynagh �n 
county Galway, �s a comb�ned cycle gas 
turb�ne capable of export�ng over �00MW 
onto the system. The other, at Augh�n�sh 
Alum�na �n county L�mer�ck, cons�sts of 

two gas fired un�ts totall�ng 
approx�mately �60MW. These two 
stat�ons �ncreased the total �nstalled 
capac�ty of d�spatchable generat�on by 
approx�mately �0% to a total export 
capac�ty of 5,836MW by the end of 2006.

System performance

The ava�lab�l�ty of the transm�ss�on 
system was ma�nta�ned at h�gh levels 
dur�ng 2006, w�th an overall average 
ava�lab�l�ty of 97.�2%. The number of 
“System M�nutes” (an �ndustry standard 
�ndex wh�ch measures the sever�ty of 
each system d�sturbance) lost dur�ng 
the year, when parts of the transm�ss�on 
system were unava�lable due to tr�pp�ngs 
or plant fa�lure, was 2.27, well w�th�n 
the system target of � System M�nutes.  

The outage plans for transm�ss�on and 
generat�on were constantly managed 
throughout the year to respond 
to chang�ng c�rcumstances on the 
power system and reflect the needs 
of generators, demand customers and 
ESB, as Transm�ss�on Asset Owner and 
operator of the D�str�but�on System. 

Generat�on ava�lab�l�ty over the year was 
low as the rate of forced outages across 
the generat�on portfol�o, averag�ng 
�3% over the year, was above expected 
levels (see Generat�on Ava�lab�l�ty 
graph on next page). The roll�ng � week 
average shows how overall ava�lab�l�ty 
drops through the summer as plants 
are scheduled out for ma�ntenance and 
then r�ses through the w�nter months 
where the demand �s at �ts h�ghest and 
scheduled ma�ntenance �s curta�led. 
The roll�ng 52 week average �nd�cates a 
downward trend through 2006, w�th the 
overall generat�on system ava�lab�l�ty for 
the year at only 78.5%.

Notw�thstand�ng the low generat�on, 
rel�ab�l�ty standards were ma�nta�ned and 
there was no d�srupt�on of suppl�es at 
any po�nt due to shortages of capac�ty.

Co-operation with System Operator 

Northern Ireland

As normal, E�rGr�d co-operated w�th SONI 
benefit�ng customers �n both Ireland and 
�n Northern Ireland. Th�s co-operat�on 
between the two system operators �s 

mutually benefic�al – �ncreas�ng system 
secur�ty and fac�l�tat�ng the shar�ng of 
reserve – �n add�t�on to afford�ng market 
part�c�pants the ab�l�ty to trade between 
the two markets.  

Dur�ng 2006 we put �n place an 
agreement w�th the operators of the 
Moyle Interconnector, �n assoc�at�on 
w�th SONI, to enable add�t�onal capac�ty 
to be sourced from Great Br�ta�n over the 
w�nter months �f th�s became necessary.

Renewables

Renewable energy sources on the Ir�sh 
system �nclude hydro projects, b�o-mass 
and w�nd generat�on. At the beg�nn�ng 
of 2006, there was approx�mately 
�95MW of w�nd connected to the Ir�sh 
electr�c�ty system. Dur�ng the year th�s 
�ncreased by over 50%, such that by the 
end of the year there was approx�mately 
750MW of w�nd capac�ty connected at 
over 60 locat�ons around Ireland, and 
project�ons for th�s cont�nue to r�se  
(see Installed W�nd Generat�on graph  
on next page).

Throughout the year we worked to 
ensure that the nat�onal targets for 
�ncreased overall generat�on from 
renewable sources could be met. We 
cont�nued to address the �ssues and 
challenges assoc�ated w�th �ncreased 
levels of w�nd �n a proact�ve and 
progress�ve manner, ensur�ng that 
secur�ty and rel�ab�l�ty of supply �s 
ma�nta�ned wh�le renewable energ�es are 
prov�ded w�th the appropr�ate access to 
the transm�ss�on system, energy markets 
and ult�mately to consumers. 

Focus for 2007
Key areas of focus �n Power System 
Operat�on dur�ng 2007 w�ll �nclude 
operat�ng the system safely and 
ma�nta�n�ng secur�ty and qual�ty of 
supply, manag�ng the comm�ss�on�ng of 
the new large Huntstown II generator 
onto the system, cont�nu�ng our work 
on �ntegrat�ng renewables and ensur�ng 
the del�very of, and smooth trans�t�on 
to, the S�ngle Electr�c�ty Market.

Power System Operation Review
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Total energy consumption (2006) 27,000GWh

Energy growth (2005 v 2006) 4.48%

System peak (1� December 2006 at 17.30) 5035MW



Electricity Market   noun  The wholesale electricity 
market provides a platform for the trading of 
electricity by different market participants, such 
as generators and suppliers. 
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A compet�t�ve electr�c�ty market �s a 
key enabler for ensur�ng the del�very 
of econom�c and effic�ent suppl�es of 
electr�c�ty to all customers. 

E�rGr�d, �n �ts role as Market Operator, 
�s respons�ble for the operat�on of the 
current wholesale electr�c�ty market. 
In add�t�on, E�rGr�d also manages the 
settlement, �nvo�c�ng and payments 
assoc�ated w�th a range of other 
transm�ss�on and market related serv�ces 
�nclud�ng:
• Transm�ss�on Use of System
• Anc�llary Serv�ces 
• Capac�ty Marg�n
•  W�nter Peak Demand Reduct�on 

Scheme
• Interrupt�ble Load
• Interconnector nom�nat�on processes

These serv�ces are essent�al to the 
operat�on of the market and power 
system. They cover the collect�on of 
charges for usage of the transm�ss�on 
system and secur�ng the prov�s�on of 
Anc�llary Serv�ces, such as operat�ng 
reserve. They also �nclude prov�d�ng 
�ncent�ves for capac�ty to be ava�lable 
through the Capac�ty Marg�n scheme 
and the promot�on of overall effic�ency 
v�a reduct�ons �n peak demands as part 
of the W�nter Peak Demand Reduct�on 
Scheme. The Interrupt�ble Load 
arrangements prov�de a key element 
of overall system secur�ty through 
contract�ng w�th large customers to 
automat�cally drop load �n the event 

of s�gn�ficant d�ps �n the frequency. 
The �nterconnector nom�nat�on 
process fac�l�tates the usage of the 
�nterconnector by market part�c�pants.

The electr�c�ty market �n Ireland �s �n a 
process of s�gn�ficant change, mov�ng 
from the or�g�nal market that was put �n 
place, on a trans�t�onal bas�s, when the 
market opened on �9 February 2000, to 
a new S�ngle Electr�c�ty Market (SEM).

Market highlights 2006

E�rGr�d had another successful year �n 
effic�ently and effect�vely operat�ng the 
current electr�c�ty market.

The current electr�c�ty market des�gn 
was establ�shed �n 2000, when the 
Ir�sh power market was first opened to 
compet�t�on. It �s a wholesale market 
and operates on the bas�s of b�lateral 
contracts between part�es �n the market 
such as generators (or producers) 
and suppl�ers (traders and re-sellers), 
comb�ned w�th a system of �mbalance 
pr�c�ng. Th�s pr�c�ng enables part�c�pants 
to balance the�r supply or demand by 
purchas�ng extra power (known as ‘top 
up’) or sell�ng excess power (‘sp�ll’).  

2006 saw an �ncrease �n the number of 
part�c�pants �n the electr�c�ty market, 
pr�nc�pally new renewable generators.

We cont�nued, throughout 2006, to 
publ�sh our quarterly rev�ews and sought 
to expand the range of data we publ�sh 
and make ava�lable to the market 
through our web s�te. 

Setting up the new Single  

Electricity Market 

The M�n�sters w�th respons�b�l�ty for 
energy �n Ireland and �n Northern Ireland 
reaffirmed the�r respect�ve Governments’ 
comm�tment to an all-�sland energy 
market �n 200�. Th�s was followed 
by d�scuss�ons w�th the Regulatory 
Author�t�es and �n 2005 E�rGr�d and SONI 
comm�tted to comb�n�ng the�r sk�lls and 
resources to work jo�ntly on a number of 
�mportant �n�t�at�ves as part of the all-
�sland project. Implement�ng the SEM, �n 
l�ne w�th the regulatory market des�gn, 
�s one of these �n�t�at�ves.

The SEM Establ�shment Programme 
was mandated to del�ver a s�ngle 
wholesale electr�c�ty market for the 
�sland of Ireland. Managed by E�rGr�d 
and SONI, �t has respons�b�l�ty for the 
establ�shment of the S�ngle Market 
Operator (SMO) and the development 
of systems and processes necessary 
for the establ�shment of the SEM. It 
also manages the necessary changes 
to processes, systems and resources as 
requ�red by E�rGr�d and SONI as TSO’s �n 
the new market.
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The new Single Market Operator

The SMO, wh�ch w�ll be respons�ble 
for the operat�on of the all-�sland 
electr�c�ty market, �s be�ng establ�shed 
jo�ntly by E�rGr�d and SONI. Core 
serv�ces w�ll �nclude spot market trade 
execut�on, settlement and clear�ng, 
and the prov�s�on of a range of market 
�nformat�on. The SMO w�ll operate �n a 
transparent, �mpart�al and customer-
focused manner, operat�ng on behalf of 
all market part�c�pants on the �sland. 
There was s�gn�ficant progress on SMO 
establ�shment dur�ng 2006, w�th the 
appo�ntment of the General Manager and 
the customer serv�ce team of the SMO.

A view of a turbine at Airtricity’s Meentycat wind farm in county Donegal
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Transmission Infrastructure   noun  The national 
transmission system or grid comprises 
approximately 6,500km of high voltage  
network and transmission stations, delivering 
electricity to all regions.
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Staff members Edel Campbell and Enda Feeley at Corduff 220kV Station



The prov�s�on and management of 
Ireland’s h�gh voltage �nfrastructure �s 
v�tal �n ensur�ng secur�ty and qual�ty 
of supply and connect�on opportun�t�es 
to all customers, and prov�d�ng a 
transm�ss�on gr�d that supports Ireland’s 
soc�al and econom�c development.  

E�rGr�d �s respons�ble for develop�ng 
and ensur�ng the ma�ntenance 
of the assets wh�ch compr�se the 
transm�ss�on system. E�rGr�d analyses the 
transm�ss�on development requ�rements 
tak�ng account of future growth �n 
customer demand, new generat�on, 
�nterconnect�on, and other changes 
�n the patterns of usage of the 
transm�ss�on system. E�rGr�d �dent�fies 
opt�mal solut�ons, develops transm�ss�on 
project spec�ficat�ons, br�ngs projects 
through the publ�c plann�ng process 
and mon�tors and rev�ews the�r del�very, 
�nclud�ng ensur�ng that they are 
constructed to the requ�red standards. 
E�rGr�d ensures that �t carr�es out �ts 
dut�es safely at all t�mes.

Transmission Planning

Due to the cont�nued growth �n 
customer demand and new generat�on 
entry onto the system, there �s 
an ongo�ng requ�rement for new 
transm�ss�on �nfrastructure, wh�ch �s 
under cont�nual rev�ew. 

E�rGr�d publ�shes the Transm�ss�on 
Forecast Statement annually. The July 
2006 Statement prov�des data on 
the expected flows of power across 

the system up to 20�2 and also 
prov�des �nformat�on on opportun�t�es 
for customers to connect to the 
transm�ss�on system. The flow of power 
on the transm�ss�on network depends 
on the locat�on and s�ze of demand at 
the var�ous gr�d stat�ons, the locat�on 
and s�ze of generators supply�ng 
that demand, and the make-up of 
the transm�ss�on network that l�nks 
generat�on and demand stat�ons. In 
undertak�ng the analys�s, E�rGr�d uses 
data concern�ng future demand growth, 
projected generat�on connect�ons and 
planned transm�ss�on developments.  

The Transm�ss�on Development Plan 
�s the deta�led plan of proposed 
�nfrastructure construct�on and upgrade 
of the transm�ss�on system over the next 
five years. Publ�shed annually, th�s plan 
presents deta�ls on comm�tted projects 
for develop�ng the transm�ss�on system, 
or projects wh�ch are shortly to be 
comm�tted. 

New Connections

A large number of transm�ss�on projects 
assoc�ated w�th the connect�on of 
new customers and generators were �n 
progress dur�ng 2006. Two s�gn�ficant 
transm�ss�on w�nd farm connect�ons 
were completed dur�ng the year. Major 
progress was made �n respect of the 
“Gate 2” w�nd connect�on process, 
whereby offers for connect�on for a 
further �,350MW of w�nd generat�on 
to the transm�ss�on and d�str�but�on 

networks w�ll �ssue dur�ng 2007. 
Connect�on of further thermal  
generat�on �s also �n progress.

Major Transmission System Projects

Implementat�on of a s�gn�ficant 
transm�ss�on development programme 
cont�nued dur�ng 2006. Projects wh�ch 
completed w�th�n the year �ncluded 
refurb�shment of 360 k�lometres of 
��0kV l�nes and �nstallat�on of 750MVA 
of h�gh voltage transformer capac�ty. 

Interconnection

Two of the largest projects underway �n 
E�rGr�d over the com�ng years concern 
�nterconnect�on to Northern Ireland and 
Great Br�ta�n. The new �nterconnectors 
w�ll prov�de benefits �nclud�ng ass�st�ng 
compet�t�on, strengthen�ng the secur�ty 
of electr�c�ty supply and support�ng the 
future growth of renewable generat�on.

A second North-South �nterconnector 
w�ll be developed by E�rGr�d �n close 
co-operat�on w�th NIE over the next 
s�x years. Th�s w�ll be bu�lt west of the 
ex�st�ng Tandragee-to-Louth electr�c�ty 
�nterconnector and �s expected to 
be approx�mately 85 k�lometres 
long, �nvolv�ng construct�on �n both 
jur�sd�ct�ons. Work cont�nued dur�ng 2006 
on the l�ne des�gn parameters and route 
select�on and th�s project w�ll cont�nue to 
be afforded a h�gh pr�or�ty �n 2007. 

Deta�led plann�ng and feas�b�l�ty stud�es 
are �n progress for a new East-West 
subsea electr�c�ty �nterconnector from 
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Ireland to Great Br�ta�n wh�ch w�ll be 
developed over the next five years. 
E�rGr�d and the Comm�ss�on for Energy 
Regulat�on are arrang�ng the des�gn of a 
compet�t�on to secure the construct�on 
of the �nterconnector. It �s proposed that 
the �nterconnector w�ll have a capac�ty of 
500MW. 

Maintenance

E�rGr�d develops and ma�nta�ns 
ma�ntenance pol�c�es and standards 
for the transm�ss�on assets, and keeps 
the ma�ntenance pol�cy under constant 
rev�ew, reflect�ng the performance and 
cond�t�on of the assets, new asset and 
ma�ntenance technolog�es, age�ng plant 
and opt�ons for plant refurb�shment or 
replacement.
 
E�rGr�d �s respons�ble for ensur�ng 
that the transm�ss�on system �s 
adequately ma�nta�ned, wh�ch �s of v�tal 
�mportance to rel�ab�l�ty performance 
and �n ensur�ng rel�able serv�ce to all 
customers. On an annual bas�s E�rGr�d 
determ�nes the ma�ntenance tasks 
wh�ch are to be carr�ed out, wh�ch are 
�mplemented by ESB under the terms of 
the Infrastructure Agreement. 

Grid Development Strategy

Towards the end of 2006 E�rGr�d 
announced �ts �ntent�on to carry out 
a major rev�ew of future transm�ss�on 
requ�rements culm�nat�ng �n a Gr�d 
Development Strategy w�th a fifteen 
to twenty year hor�zon. Th�s �n�t�at�ve 

recogn�ses the s�gn�ficant changes 
�n the demands be�ng placed on the 
transm�ss�on system, result�ng from 
new generat�on patterns, large volumes 
of renewable generat�on, s�gn�ficant 
�nterconnect�on and other factors. The 
strategy w�ll be v�s�onary and �nnovat�ve, 
robust to a range of var�ables, and w�ll 
be based on prov�d�ng cost effect�ve 
solut�ons to transm�ss�on needs. The 
development of the strategy w�ll �nvolve 
consultat�on w�th the �ndustry and 
stakeholders, and w�ll be completed 
dur�ng 2007.

Transmission Infrastructure Programme

In add�t�on to the major �nterconnect�on 
projects, an �nvestment of over 
€500m �s be�ng made �n extend�ng 
and strengthen�ng the transm�ss�on 
system over a five year per�od to 20�0. 
Electr�c�ty peak demand �s expected 
to �ncrease by over 20% dur�ng th�s 
per�od. The programme of �nvestment 
w�ll �nclude developments �n all parts of 
the country. 

A large number of renewable and other 
generat�on projects have been connected 
to the transm�ss�on system �n the recent 
past. Developments are �n progress for 
the connect�on of further generators and 
customers. 
 
Dur�ng 2007, a further �350MW of 
renewable generat�on projects w�ll 
rece�ve offers for connect�on to the 
power system. 
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Bernie Gray 
Cha�rperson 

Bern�e Gray was appo�nted to the 
Board �n September 2005 for a per�od 
of five years and was appo�nted as 
Cha�rperson �n Apr�l 2006. Bern�e has 
w�de-rang�ng exper�ence �n the field 
of Human Resources and Industr�al 
Relat�ons. Work�ng w�th E�rcom between 
�98� and 2002, she held a number of 
management pos�t�ons w�th�n F�nance 
and HR areas and latterly served as HR 
D�rector from �998 to 2002. She also 
served as a Worker D�rector from �988 
to �992 and as a Trustee of E�rcom’s 
Defined Benefit and Defined Contr�but�on 
pens�on schemes. Bern�e �s currently an 
�ndependent HR consultant work�ng w�th 
a range of publ�c and pr�vate  
sector compan�es.

Dermot Byrne 
Ch�ef Execut�ve 

Dermot Byrne was appo�nted Ch�ef 
Execut�ve of E�rGr�d �n July 2005. Dermot 
�s an electr�cal eng�neer, holds a Master’s 
Degree �n Eng�neer�ng, has an MBA, 
and has extens�ve sen�or management 
exper�ence �n the electr�c�ty �ndustry �n 
Ireland and abroad. He has exper�ence �n 
a range of eng�neer�ng and operat�onal 
roles �n the operat�on of the transm�ss�on 
system and also worked on consultancy 
�n Bahra�n. From �993 to �997 he was 
Manager, Power System Operat�on �n 
ESB Nat�onal Gr�d. In the late �990’s 
he worked �n sen�or roles w�th�n ESB 
customer serv�ces and power generat�on 
areas. In 2000 he was appo�nted as the 
first Head of ESB Networks, where he 
oversaw the major ramp-up �n �nvestment 
�n transm�ss�on and d�str�but�on 
�nfrastructure. Dermot �s a Fellow of 
the Inst�tut�on of Eng�neers of Ireland 
and a D�st�ngu�shed Member of the 
�nternat�onal electr�c�ty body CIGRE.

Emer Daly

Emer Daly was first appo�nted to the 
Board �n March 200� and she was 
appo�nted for a second term �n March 
2005 for a per�od of three years. Emer 
�s a Chartered Accountant who has over 
20 years exper�ence �n both pract�ce and 
�ndustry. Unt�l Apr�l 2006 she worked 
as a D�rector w�th AXA Insurance, 
respons�ble for the R�sk Management, 
F�nance and Plann�ng funct�ons dur�ng 
her t�me there. Pr�or to that she worked 
w�th Pr�cewaterhouseCoopers where she 
ga�ned a w�de exper�ence of aud�t, due 
d�l�gence and consultancy work, carry�ng 
out ass�gnments for a var�ety of cl�ents 
�nclud�ng l�sted compan�es, publ�c sector 
and pr�vate compan�es. In 2005, Emer 
completed the D�ploma �n Corporate 
Governance �n UCD, and she �s currently 
work�ng as an �ndependent consultant. 
Emer �s also a D�rector of the Property 
Reg�strat�on Author�ty and of Fr�ends 
Prov�dent Internat�onal L�m�ted.
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William Egenton

 
W�ll�am Egenton was appo�nted to the 
Board �n Apr�l 2006 for a per�od of five 
years. W�ll�am �s currently Manag�ng 
D�rector of Dromone Eng�neer�ng Ltd, 
Co Meath and has held a number of 
sen�or roles �n mult�nat�onal compan�es 
�nclud�ng Raychem Corporat�on, Tyco 
Electron�cs and Ingersol Rand. W�ll�am 
has carr�ed out numerous �nternat�onal 
ass�gnments �n Ma�nland Europe, North 
Amer�ca, As�a Pac�fic and South Afr�ca. 
W�ll�am holds a Bachelors degree �n 
Mechan�cal Eng�neer�ng, a Masters �n 
Industr�al Eng�neer�ng and a Masters 
�n Bus�ness Adm�n�strat�on. He �s a 
Chartered Eng�neer and a Corporate 
Member of the Inst�tute of Electr�cal 
Eng�neers.

Cormac MacDonnchadha 

 
Cormac MacDonnchadha was appo�nted 
to the Board �n December 2006 for 
a per�od of five years, follow�ng h�s 
elect�on as the Staff Representat�ve. 
Cormac �s an electr�cal eng�neer and has 
worked �n the electr�c�ty �ndustry s�nce 
�993. He has worked s�nce �999 w�th 
the Transm�ss�on System Operator (TSO) 
ma�nly �n the Power System Plann�ng 
and Power System Operat�on areas. Pr�or 
to work�ng �n the TSO, Cormac worked 
�n ESB Networks on var�ous projects 
assoc�ated w�th the d�str�but�on level 
voltage (38kV and below). Cormac 
qual�fied w�th an honours degree �n 
Electr�cal Eng�neer�ng from UCD �n 
�993. He has d�plomas �n Account�ng 
and F�nance from ACCA and Project 
Management from Tr�n�ty College Dubl�n. 

David Mackey

 
Dav�d Mackey was first appo�nted to the 
Board �n March 200� and for a second 
term �n March 2005 for further per�od 
of three years. Dav�d spent over twenty 
years �n the local government serv�ce 
where h�s pos�t�ons �ncluded Ass�stant 
County Manager of South T�pperary and 
Cavan County Manager. In �989, he 
moved �nto the pr�vate sector, spend�ng 
over ten years w�th the Qu�nn Group, s�x 
years as Group General Manager, followed 
by four years as Group Ch�ef Execut�ve.  
In �999 he went �nto bus�ness w�th 
the Ell�ott Fam�ly when Flag Propert�es 
Ltd was formed. S�nce 2002 he has also 
held the pos�t�on of Ch�ef Execut�ve of P 
Ell�ott & Co Ltd, Cavan, wh�ch �s one of 
the top five construct�on compan�es �n 
Ireland.  Other pos�t�ons wh�ch he holds 
�nclude Cha�rman of the Central F�sher�es 
Board and a member of the Stad�um 
Execut�ve Comm�ttee of Croke Park. 
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Martina Moloney

Mart�na Moloney was appo�nted to 
the Board �n September 200� for a 
per�od of five years. Mart�na �s a career 
offic�al �n the Local Government Sector 
and currently holds the pos�t�on of 
County Manager w�th Louth County 
Counc�l, wh�ch serv�ces more than 
�00,000 people, has an annual spend 
�n excess of €200m and a staff of 700. 
Mart�na prev�ously worked �n s�x other 
local author�t�es �nclud�ng Galway 
C�ty where she held the pos�t�on of 
D�rector of Serv�ces, w�th a rem�t of 
Corporate Serv�ces and Commun�ty and 
Enterpr�se. Mart�na holds a BA �n Publ�c 
Adm�n�strat�on and an MA �n Publ�c 
Management, and �s a member of the 
Inst�tute of Account�ng Techn�c�ans. She 
�s a member of the Her�tage Counc�l and 
Louth County Enterpr�se Board. 

Jane Williams

Jane W�ll�ams was appo�nted to the 
Board �n Apr�l 2006 for a per�od of 
five years. The Manag�ng D�rector of 
The S�a Group, Jane holds a Bus�ness 
Stud�es degree from Tr�n�ty College and 
a masters degree �n Psychology from 
Colomb�a Un�vers�ty, New York. Jane 
�s currently undertak�ng research for 
a PhD �n Gender �n Dec�s�on-Mak�ng 
at TCD. Jane’s career �ncludes two 
years �n �nternat�onal bank�ng w�th 
Banque Nat�onale de Par�s, n�ne years 
�n financ�al analys�s and �nternat�onal 
market�ng and sales w�th the Industr�al 
Development Author�ty, both �n Dubl�n 
and New York, a year w�th DL Taffner, 
New York, a TV product�on and an�mat�on 
company, and e�ghteen years �n bus�ness 
and organ�sat�onal consultancy w�th 
The S�a Group as Manag�ng D�rector. 
Jane spec�al�ses �n strategy, fac�l�tat�on 
and tra�n�ng. Jane �s a member of the 
Board of Forfas, the Decentral�sat�on 
Implementat�on Group, and a number of 
pr�vate Boards.

Niamh Cahill 
Company Secretary

(See page 2�) 
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Operations F�ntan Slye

All Island Project Ann Scully

Finance A�dan Skelly Legal N�amh Cah�ll

Corporate Services Tom Greene

Grid Development and Commercial Andrew Cooke

Minister for Communications, Marine and Natural Resources Noel Dempsey, TD

Board of EirGrid Cha�rperson Bern�e Gray

Chief Executive Dermot Byrne
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Staff members Thibault Servan and Ibrahima Leye at work in the EirGrid offices



Executive Team

Dermot Byrne 
Ch�ef Execut�ve

(See Page �9)

Niamh Cahill 
Company Secretary / Company Lawyer

N�amh Cah�ll was appo�nted Company 
Secretary of E�rGr�d �n August 200�. 
N�amh �s a qual�fied Barr�ster and was 
called to the Ir�sh Bar �n �985 and the 
UK Bar (M�ddle Temple Inn) �n �988. She 
has extens�ve exper�ence both �n pr�vate 
pract�ce (Four Courts, Ireland) and as 
an �n-house legal Counsel worked for a 
w�de range of major �nternat�onal pr�vate 
and publ�c compan�es �n the Republ�c 
of Ireland and the UK. Pr�or to jo�n�ng 
E�rGr�d, N�amh worked for e�ght years as 
a sen�or commerc�al Lawyer w�th�n ESB 
Group, where she had respons�b�l�ty for 
manag�ng and m�t�gat�ng a w�de range 
of commerc�al legal r�sks �n the Ir�sh 
electr�c�ty market and ESB’s  
�nternat�onal �nvestments.

Andrew Cooke 
D�rector, Gr�d Development & Commerc�al

As E�rGr�d’s D�rector, Gr�d Development 
and Commerc�al, Andrew �s respons�ble 
for the plann�ng, development and 
ma�ntenance of the transm�ss�on gr�d. He 
also has respons�b�l�ty for the des�gn and 
�mplementat�on of transm�ss�on access 
and tar�ff arrangements, and for E�rGr�d’s 
customer and regulatory relat�ons. 
Andrew �s an electr�cal eng�neer w�th 
over twenty-five years exper�ence �n the 
areas of transm�ss�on system operat�ons 
and plann�ng, and market des�gn and 
regulat�on.
 
 

Tom Greene 
D�rector, Corporate Serv�ces

Tom Greene leads the team that develops 
and supports E�rGr�d’s Corporate Serv�ces 
wh�ch �ncludes Informat�on Serv�ces, 
Human Resources and Publ�c Relat�ons. 
An electr�cal eng�neer by profess�on, he 
worked w�th ESB pr�or to jo�n�ng E�rGr�d. 
Dur�ng h�s career he has worked �n the 
areas of telecommun�cat�ons, personnel 
and power system operat�on.
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Ann Scully
D�rector, All-Island Project

Pr�or to becom�ng D�rector, All Island 
Project, Ann Scully managed the Market 
Operat�ons funct�on, wh�ch prov�des a 
settlement serv�ce to the part�c�pants 
�n the energy market. Th�s was a 
new funct�on set up to support the 
compet�t�ve electr�c�ty market, wh�ch 
began on �9 February 2000. Pr�or 
to sett�ng up the Market Operat�ons 
funct�on, Ann was the Pres�dent and CEO 
of ESBI Alberta Ltd, the Transm�ss�on 
Adm�n�strator �n Alberta, Canada. An 
electr�cal eng�neer by profess�on, she 
also held a number of project and 
management roles �n ESB Nat�onal Gr�d.
 

Aidan Skelly
Ch�ef F�nanc�al Officer

A�dan Skelly jo�ned E�rGr�d as Ch�ef 
F�nanc�al Officer �n June 2005. Pr�or 
to th�s he worked as F�nance D�rector 
w�th Waterford Stanley for three years. 
He was prev�ously w�th Waterford 
Crystal for fifteen years, dur�ng wh�ch 
t�me he held a number of F�nance 
and Sales and Market�ng pos�t�ons, 
both �n Ireland and �n the UK. He 
�s a Commerce graduate of UCD and 
tra�ned as a Chartered Accountant w�th 
Pr�cewaterhouseCoopers, Dubl�n.
 

Fintan Slye
D�rector, Operat�ons

F�ntan assumed the pos�t�on of 
Operat�ons D�rector at E�rGr�d �n January 
2007. For the prev�ous two years, F�ntan 
worked for McK�nsey & Co �n �ts Dubl�n 
office. Pr�or to that, he held a number 
of project and management roles �n ESB 
Nat�onal Gr�d and ESB Internat�onal. 
F�ntan completed a Masters �n Bus�ness 
Adm�n�strat�on from UCD �n 200� and a 
Masters �n Eng�neer�ng Sc�ence �n �993.
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The D�rectors present the�r Annual 
Report and the aud�ted financ�al 
statements of E�rGr�d plc for the year 
ended 3� December 2006.

Principal Activities 

E�rGr�d’s pr�nc�pal act�v�t�es are to 
del�ver qual�ty connect�on, transm�ss�on 
and market serv�ces to generators, 
suppl�ers and customers ut�l�s�ng the 
h�gh voltage electr�c�ty system and 
to put �n place the gr�d �nfrastructure 
requ�red to support the development 
of Ireland’s economy. E�rGr�d �s also 
respons�ble for the operat�on of the 
wholesale electr�c�ty market.

Results And Review Of The Business

Deta�ls of the financ�al results of the 
Company are set out �n the Income 
Statement on page 36 and the related 
notes. 

Commentar�es on performance dur�ng 
the year ended 3� December 2006, 
�nclud�ng �nformat�on on recent events 
and future developments, are conta�ned 
�n the Cha�rperson’s Report and the Ch�ef 
Execut�ve’s Report.

Corporate Governance

E�rGr�d compl�es w�th the Code of 
Pract�ce for the Governance of State 
Bod�es approved by the Government 
on 02 October 200�. The code sets out 
the pr�nc�ples of corporate governance 
wh�ch the Boards of State Bod�es 
are requ�red to observe. E�rGr�d also 
compl�es w�th the corporate governance 
and other obl�gat�ons �mposed by the 
Eth�cs �n Publ�c Office Act, �995 and the 
Standards �n Publ�c Office Act, 200�.

E�rGr�d conforms as far as poss�ble, and 
on a voluntary bas�s, w�th the pr�nc�ples 
of the Comb�ned Code of Corporate 
Governance. The Comb�ned Code sets out 
the pr�nc�ples of Good Governance and 
a code of Best Pract�ce, and Compan�es 
l�sted on the Ir�sh Stock Exchange are 
requ�red to report on compl�ance w�th 
all prov�s�ons of the Code as part of 
the l�st�ng rules. E�rGr�d �s comm�tted 
to ach�ev�ng the h�ghest standards 
of corporate governance and eth�cal 
bus�ness conduct and has �mplemented 
as appropr�ate the relevant pr�nc�ples of 
the Comb�ned Code w�th the follow�ng 
except�ons:

•  E�rGr�d �s accountable to the M�n�ster 
for Commun�cat�ons, Mar�ne and 
Natural Resources; 

•  Appo�ntments to the Board are 
a matter for Government and 
accord�ngly E�rGr�d does not have a 
Nom�nat�on Comm�ttee;

•  Board members are appo�nted by 
Government and therefore are not 
subject to re-elect�on to the Board;

•  E�rGr�d’s pol�cy �n relat�on to the 
remunerat�on of the Ch�ef Execut�ve 
�s �n accordance w�th “Arrangements 
for determ�n�ng the remunerat�on 
of Ch�ef Execut�ves of Commerc�al 
State Bod�es under the aeg�s of the 
Department of Publ�c Enterpr�se” 
�ssued �n July �999; and 

•  It �s the op�n�on of the Board 
that the appo�ntment of a Sen�or 
Independent D�rector would not be 
appropr�ate �n the context of the 
membersh�p of the Board.

Principles Of Good Governance

Board Members

The Board cons�sts of a non-execut�ve 
Cha�rperson, an execut�ve D�rector and 
s�x non-execut�ve D�rectors. One of the 
non-execut�ve D�rectors �s an employee of 
the Company. All D�rectors are appo�nted 
by the M�n�ster for Commun�cat�ons, 
Mar�ne and Natural Resources and the�r 
terms of office are set out �n wr�t�ng. The 
names of the Board Members and a short 
b�ograph�cal note on each Member are set 
out on pages �9 to 2�.

Directors’ Report
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The Board

Wh�le day to day respons�b�l�ty for the 
leadersh�p and control of the Company 
�s delegated to the Ch�ef Execut�ve and 
h�s Management Team, w�th�n defined 
author�ty l�m�ts, the Board �s ult�mately 
respons�ble for the performance of the 
Company.

The D�rectors are aware of, and have 
�nd�v�dually resolved to comply w�th, 
E�rGr�d’s Code of Bus�ness Conduct for 
D�rectors.

The Board has a formal schedule of 
matters spec�fically reserved to �t for 
dec�s�on at the Board Meet�ngs normally 
held monthly.  

The Board Members, �n the furtherance 
of the�r dut�es, may ava�l of �ndependent 
profess�onal adv�ce. All Board Members 
have access to the adv�ce and serv�ces of 
the Company Secretary. Insurance cover 
�s �n place to protect Board Members 
and Officers aga�nst l�ab�l�ty ar�s�ng from 
legal act�ons taken aga�nst them �n the 
course of the�r dut�es. 

Board papers, wh�ch �nclude monthly 
financ�al statements, are sent to Board 
members �n the week pr�or to Board 
Meet�ngs.

The Board conducts an annual rev�ew 
of the effect�veness of the system of 
�nternal controls �nclud�ng financ�al, 
compl�ance and r�sk management.

Attendance at Meetings

There were �3 Board Meet�ngs held 
dur�ng the year ended 3� December 
2006. The Board Members’ attendances 
at these Meet�ngs were as set out �n 
the Attendance at Board Meet�ngs 2006 
table at the top of th�s page.

Board Committees in 2006

The Board has an effect�ve comm�ttee 
structure to ass�st �n the d�scharge of 
�ts respons�b�l�t�es, cons�st�ng of three 
sub comm�ttees:  an Aud�t Comm�ttee, 
a Remunerat�on Comm�ttee and a 
Trans�t�on Comm�ttee. 

The Aud�t Comm�ttee’s funct�on �s to 
ass�st the Board �n fulfill�ng �ts overs�ght 
respons�b�l�t�es relat�ng to the financ�al 
report�ng process, the system of �nternal 
control, the aud�t process, compl�ance 
w�th laws and regulat�ons and the 
Code of Pract�ce for the Governance of 
State Bod�es. The members of the Aud�t 
Comm�ttee are Emer Daly (Cha�rperson), 
W�ll�am Egenton and Mart�na Moloney.

The Remunerat�on Comm�ttee, w�th 
the consent of the Department of 
Commun�cat�ons, Mar�ne and Natural 
Resources and the Department of 
F�nance, determ�nes the level of the 
Ch�ef Execut�ve’s remunerat�on. The 
members of the Remunerat�on Comm�ttee 
are Bern�e Gray (Cha�rperson), Dav�d 
Mackey and Jane W�ll�ams. 

The Trans�t�on Comm�ttee was 
establ�shed to ass�st the Board �n 
fulfill�ng �ts respons�b�l�t�es �n relat�on 
to the Transfer Scheme �n respect of 

ESB transferr�ng staff to E�rGr�d and any 
assoc�ated agreements/arrangements to 
ensure compl�ance w�th the European 
Commun�t�es (Internal Market �n 
Electr�c�ty) Regulat�ons, No ��5 of 
2000 (‘SI ��5/2000’). The members of 
the Trans�t�on Comm�ttee are Mart�na 
Moloney (Cha�rperson), Emer Daly and 
Jane W�ll�ams. 

*  Maur�ce Holly absented h�mself 
from Board Meet�ngs from �9 July 
2006 as he d�d not transfer to 
E�rGr�d on 0� July 2006. He ret�red 
from the Board on 07 December 
2006. 

**  Ret�red from the Board on �9 
March 2006.

***  Appo�nted to the Board on 25 
Apr�l 2006.

****   Appo�nted to the Board on 08 
December 2006.

El�g�ble to Attend Attended

Bern�e Gray (Cha�rperson) �3 �3

Dermot Byrne (Ch�ef Execut�ve) �3 �3

Eamon Cah�ll ** 3 3

Emer Daly �3 �2

W�ll�am Egenton*** 8 8

Maur�ce Holly * 8 8 

Cormac MacDonnchadha **** � �

Dav�d Mackey �3 9

Mart�na Moloney �3 �2

Edd�e O’Kelly ** 3 3

Jane W�ll�ams *** 8 8

Attendance at Board Meetings 2006
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Risk Management

The Company has �n place a 
comprehens�ve r�sk management 
programme that �dent�fies the cr�t�cal 
r�sks to wh�ch �t �s exposed and ensures 
that appropr�ate r�sk m�t�gat�on 
measures are taken. The Internal 
Aud�t Plan �s �ntegrated w�th the r�sk 
management programme so as to ensure 
�ts overall effect�veness.

Financial Risk Management

As a regulated bus�ness, operat�ng �n 
the Republ�c of Ireland, E�rGr�d does not 
have any s�gn�ficant pr�c�ng or fore�gn 
exchange r�sks. Also at present the 
Company does not have any �nterest 
rate exposure on borrow�ngs. Adequate 
secur�ty depos�ts and bonds are �n 
place to manage any cred�t r�sk that 
would result from payment default by a 
customer.

The Company’s pr�nc�pal financ�al r�sk 
�s to ensure adequate l�qu�d�ty �n the 
event of a s�gn�ficant regulatory under-
recovery. Substant�al bank�ng l�nes 
are �n place to enable �t to fund such 
a requ�rement, pend�ng recovery �n a 
subsequent regulatory pr�c�ng per�od.  

Operational Risk Management

E�rGr�d �s respons�ble for the secure 
operat�on of the nat�onal gr�d. A 
complete programme �s �n place to 
d�scharge th�s respons�b�l�ty. Th�s 
�ncludes:
•  A back-up s�te for the Nat�onal 

Control Centre, wh�ch �s regularly 
tested;

•  Comprehens�ve power system 
operat�onal procedures that are 

constantly rev�ewed and are �n l�ne 
w�th best �nternat�onal pract�ce; and

•  Appropr�ate gr�d ma�ntenance 
standards and pol�c�es, supported by 
a deta�led Infrastructure Agreement 
w�th ESB as the Transm�ss�on Asset 
Owner.

Internal Controls

An �nternal control system encompasses 
the pol�c�es, processes, tasks, behav�ours 
and other aspects of a Company that, 
taken together:
•  Fac�l�tate effect�ve and effic�ent 

operat�ons by enabl�ng the Company 
to respond to r�sks;

•  Help ensure the qual�ty of �nternal 
and external report�ng; and

•  Help ensure compl�ance w�th 
appl�cable laws, regulat�ons and 
�nternal pol�c�es.

The Board has overall respons�b�l�ty 
for the Company’s systems of �nternal 
financ�al control and for mon�tor�ng 
the�r effect�veness and �n th�s regard 
�ts object�ve �s to ma�nta�n a sound 
system of �nternal control to safeguard 
shareholders’ �nvestment and the 
Company’s assets. These systems 
are des�gned to prov�de reasonable 
but not absolute assurance aga�nst 
mater�al m�sstatement or loss. In order 
to d�scharge that respons�b�l�ty �n a 
manner wh�ch ensures compl�ance w�th 
leg�slat�on and regulat�ons, the Board 
establ�shed an organ�sat�onal structure 
w�th clear report�ng procedures, l�nes 
of respons�b�l�ty, author�sat�on l�m�ts, 
segregat�on of dut�es and delegated 
author�ty.

The key elements of the Company’s 
�nternal financ�al control processes are:
•  Defined pol�ces and procedures �n 

relat�on to expend�ture and treasury 
matters;

•  Su�table financ�al report�ng on a 
monthly bas�s;

•  Preparat�on of and mon�tor�ng 
performance aga�nst annual budgets;

•  An �nternal aud�t funct�on wh�ch 
rev�ews cr�t�cal systems and controls;

•  An Aud�t Comm�ttee that cons�ders 
aud�t reports and approves financ�al 
statements before subm�ss�on to the 
Board and Shareholders;

•  The conduct of a r�sk rev�ew  
process; and

•  Procedures to ensure compl�ance w�th 
laws and regulat�ons.

The Company has put �n place a 
framework for mon�tor�ng and rev�ew�ng 
the effect�veness of �nternal financ�al 
controls, �nclud�ng the development of a 
r�sk management process.

It �s also the Company’s a�m, at all 
t�mes, to comply w�th agreed report�ng 
requ�rements of Government departments 
as requ�red on a t�mely and accurate 
bas�s.

In 2006, the Board met formally on 
th�rteen occas�ons. The Board �s sat�sfied 
that the d�rect�on and control of the 
Company �s firmly �n �ts hands.

S�nce January 2003, the Company has an 
Internal Aud�t and Compl�ance funct�on.
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The Company’s annual budget �s rev�ewed 
and approved by the Board and the 
Board rece�ves monthly management 
accounts on a t�mely bas�s.

The D�rectors confirm that they have 
rev�ewed the effect�veness of the system 
of �nternal financ�al control operated 
dur�ng the year covered by these 
financ�al statements.

Directors’ Remuneration

The financ�al statements �nclude a 
prov�s�on of €��8,763 (2005: €�06,082) 
for Cha�rperson and D�rectors’ fees, �n 
accordance w�th the Department of 
F�nance approved levels of remunerat�on 
for the Cha�rperson and Board Members 
of State Bod�es. Under the approved 
remunerat�on levels, the Cha�rperson’s fees 
are €2�,000 (2005: €�5,237) per annum 
and the D�rectors’ fees are €��,000 
(2005: €�0,�58) each per annum. 

The only execut�ve Board Member �s 
the Ch�ef Execut�ve, Mr. Dermot Byrne. 
The Ch�ef Execut�ve’s remunerat�on 
�s set w�th�n a range determ�ned by 
the M�n�sters for F�nance and for 
Commun�cat�ons, Mar�ne and Natural 

Resources. It �s determ�ned annually, 
by the Remunerat�on Comm�ttee, wh�ch 
compr�ses non-execut�ve Board Members, 
and �s approved by the Board. 

The remunerat�on of the Ch�ef Execut�ve 
cons�sts of bas�c salary, performance 
related bonus, certa�n ret�rement 
benefits and a company car. In h�s role 
as a Board Member the Ch�ef Execut�ve 
also rece�ves a fee, as determ�ned by 
the M�n�ster for Commun�cat�ons, Mar�ne 
and Natural Resources. The ret�rement 
benefits of the Ch�ef Execut�ve are 
calculated on bas�c pay only and a�m 
to prov�de �n ret�rement a pens�on of 
one-e�ght�eth and a gratu�ty of three-
e�ght�eths of salary for each year of 
serv�ce as Ch�ef Execut�ve. The �ncreases 
�n accrued pens�on and accrued gratu�ty 
exclud�ng �nflat�on dur�ng the year were 
€2,379 and €7,�37 respect�vely. The 
total accrued pens�on at the end of the 
year was €3,559 and the total accrued 
gratu�ty was €�0,677. The transfer value 
of the relevant �ncrease was €62,�05.

Dividends
The D�rectors of the Company do not 
propose the payment of a d�v�dend for 
the year.

Directors’ and Secretary’s Interest  

in Shares

Bern�e Gray, Dermot Byrne and N�amh 
Cah�ll hold one share each on behalf of 
the M�n�ster for F�nance.

One ord�nary share �s held by the 
M�n�ster for Commun�cat�ons, Mar�ne and 
Natural Resources and the rema�nder of 
the �ssued share cap�tal �s benefic�ally 
held by the M�n�ster for F�nance, or on 
h�s behalf.

Politicial Donations

The Company does not make any 
pol�t�cal donat�ons.

Going Concern

The financ�al statements are prepared 
on a go�ng concern bas�s as the Board, 
after mak�ng appropr�ate enqu�r�es, �s 
sat�sfied that E�rGr�d plc has adequate 
resources to cont�nue �n operat�on for 
the foreseeable future.

Books Of Account

The measures that the D�rectors have 
taken to ensure that proper books 
of account are kept (under Sect�on 
202 of the Compan�es Act, �990) 
are the adopt�on of su�table pol�c�es 
for record�ng transact�ons, assets 
and l�ab�l�t�es, the employment of 
appropr�ately qual�fied staff and the use 
of computer and documentary systems.  
The Company’s books of account are kept 
at 27 Lower F�tzw�ll�am Street, Dubl�n 2.

2006
z’000

2005
z’000

Salary �83 88

Performance related pay 33 20

Taxable benefits �9 9

Pens�on contr�but�ons pa�d 55 26

D�rector’s Fees �� 5

Total 304 148

Chief Executive’s Remuneration*:

*Dermot Byrne was appo�nted Ch�ef Execut�ve on 0� July 2005.



Health And Safety

In order to ensure the safety of the 
Company’s staff and that of all persons 
that may be affected by �ts act�v�t�es, 
a Safety Management System (cert�fied 
to OHSAS �800�) has been approved 
and �mplemented. One of the key 
components of th�s Safety Management 
System �s the preparat�on and �ssue of a 
Safety Statement. The Safety Statement, 
and �ts compl�ance w�th appropr�ate 
leg�slat�on, �s rev�ewed on a cont�nuous 
bas�s. 

Auditors

The aud�tors, Delo�tte & Touche, 
Chartered Accountants, have s�gn�fied 
the�r w�ll�ngness to cont�nue �n office �n 
accordance w�th Sect�on �60(2) of the 
Compan�es Act, �963.

Statement Of Directors’ 

Responsibilities

The D�rectors are respons�ble for 
prepar�ng the annual report and the 
financ�al statements �n accordance 
w�th appl�cable Ir�sh law and generally 
accepted account�ng pract�ce �n Ireland 
�nclud�ng the account�ng standards 
�ssued by the Account�ng Standards 
Board and publ�shed by the Inst�tute of 
Chartered Accountants �n Ireland.

Ir�sh company law requ�res the D�rectors 
to prepare financ�al statements for each 
financ�al year wh�ch g�ve a true and 
fa�r v�ew of the state of affa�rs of the 
Company and of the profit or loss of 
the Company for that year. In prepar�ng 
those financ�al statements, the D�rectors 
are requ�red to:
•  select su�table account�ng pol�c�es 

and then apply them cons�stently;
•  make judgements and est�mates that 

are reasonable and prudent and;
•  prepare the financ�al statements on 

the go�ng concern bas�s unless �t �s 
�nappropr�ate to presume that the 
Company w�ll cont�nue �n bus�ness.

The D�rectors confirm that they have 
compl�ed w�th the above requ�rements �n 
prepar�ng the financ�al statements. 

The D�rectors are respons�ble for keep�ng 
proper books of account wh�ch d�sclose 
w�th reasonable accuracy at any t�me the 
financ�al pos�t�on of the Company and to 
enable them to ensure that the financ�al 

statements are prepared �n accordance 
w�th account�ng standards generally 
accepted �n Ireland and comply w�th 
Ir�sh statute compr�s�ng the Compan�es 
Acts, �963 to 2006 and the Code of 
Pract�ce for the Governance of State 
Bod�es.  They are also respons�ble for 
safeguard�ng the assets of the Company 
and hence for tak�ng reasonable steps 
for the prevent�on and detect�on of fraud 
and other �rregular�t�es.

The D�rectors are respons�ble for the 
ma�ntenance and �ntegr�ty of the 
�nformat�on �ncluded on the Company’s 
webs�te. Informat�on publ�shed on the 
�nternet �s access�ble �n many countr�es 
w�th d�fferent legal requ�rements. 
Leg�slat�on �n Ireland govern�ng the 
preparat�on and d�ssem�nat�on of 
financ�al statements may d�ffer from 
leg�slat�on �n other jur�sd�ct�ons. 

On behalf of the Board:  

Bern�e Gray
Cha�rperson

Dermot Byrne
Ch�ef Execut�ve
�8 Apr�l 2007
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We have aud�ted the financ�al statements 
of E�rGr�d Plc for the year ended 3� 
December 2006 wh�ch compr�se the 
Income Statement, the Balance Sheet, 
the Statement of recogn�sed Income 
and Expense, the Cash Flow Statement, 
the Statement of Account�ng Pol�c�es 
and the related notes � to 20. These 
financ�al statements have been prepared 
under the account�ng pol�c�es set out �n 
the statement of account�ng pol�c�es.
Th�s report �s made solely to the 
company’s members, as a body, �n 
accordance w�th Sect�on �93 of the 
Compan�es Act �990. Our aud�t work 
has been undertaken so that we m�ght 
state to the company’s members those 
matters we are requ�red to state to them 
�n an aud�tors’ report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent perm�tted 
by law, we do not accept or assume 
respons�b�l�ty to anyone other than the 
company and the company’s members 
as a body, for our aud�t work, for th�s 
report, or for the op�n�ons we have 
formed.

Respective responsibilities of  

directors and auditors

The d�rectors are respons�ble for 
prepar�ng the Annual Report, �nclud�ng 
as set out �n the Statement of D�rectors’ 
Respons�b�l�t�es the preparat�on of the 
financ�al statements, �n accordance 
w�th appl�cable law and Internat�onal 
F�nanc�al Report�ng Standards (IFRSs) as 
adopted for use �n the European Un�on.

Our respons�b�l�ty, as �ndependent 
aud�tors, �s to aud�t the financ�al 
statements �n accordance w�th relevant 
legal and regulatory requ�rements and 
Internat�onal Standards on Aud�t�ng 
(UK and Ireland). We report to you our 
op�n�on as to whether the financ�al 
statements g�ve a true and fa�r v�ew, �n 
accordance w�th IFRSs, and are properly 
prepared �n accordance w�th Ir�sh 
statute compr�s�ng the Compan�es Acts, 
�963 to 2006. We also report to you 
whether �n our op�n�on: proper books of 
account have been kept by the company; 
whether, at the balance sheet date, there 
ex�sts a financ�al s�tuat�on requ�r�ng the 
conven�ng of an extraord�nary general 
meet�ng of the company; and whether 

the �nformat�on g�ven �n the d�rectors’ 
report �s cons�stent w�th the financ�al 
statements. 

In add�t�on, we state whether we 
have obta�ned all the �nformat�on and 
explanat�ons necessary for the purposes 
of our aud�t and whether the company’s 
balance sheet and profit and loss 
account are �n agreement w�th the books 
of account. 

We also report to you �f, �n our op�n�on, 
any �nformat�on spec�fied by law 
regard�ng d�rectors’ remunerat�on and 
d�rectors’ transact�ons �s not d�sclosed 
and, where pract�cable, �nclude such 
�nformat�on �n our report.

We read the other �nformat�on conta�ned 
�n the annual report and cons�der the 
�mpl�cat�ons for our report �f we become 
aware of any apparent m�sstatement 
or mater�al �ncons�stenc�es w�th 
the financ�al statements. The other 
�nformat�on compr�ses only the D�rector’s 
Report, the Cha�rperson’s Report and 
the Ch�ef Execut�ve’s Report. Our 
respons�b�l�t�es do not extend to other 
�nformat�on. 

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our aud�t �n accordance 
w�th Internat�onal Standards on Aud�t�ng 
(UK and Ireland) �ssued by the Aud�t�ng 
Pract�ces Board. An aud�t �ncludes 
exam�nat�on, on a test bas�s, of ev�dence 
relevant to the amounts and d�sclosures 
�n the financ�al statements. It also 
�ncludes an assessment of the s�gn�ficant 
est�mates and judgements made by 
the d�rectors �n the preparat�on of the 
financ�al statements and of whether 
the account�ng pol�c�es are appropr�ate 
to the company’s c�rcumstances, 
cons�stently appl�ed and adequately 
d�sclosed.

We planned and performed our aud�t 
so as to obta�n all the �nformat�on 
and explanat�ons wh�ch we cons�dered 
necessary �n order to prov�de us w�th 
suffic�ent ev�dence to g�ve reasonable 
assurance that the financ�al statements 
are free from mater�al m�sstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or other 
�rregular�ty or error. In form�ng our 

op�n�on we evaluated the overall 
adequacy of the presentat�on of 
�nformat�on �n the financ�al statements.
Op�n�on

In our op�n�on the financ�al statements:
•  g�ve a true and fa�r v�ew, �n 

accordance w�th IFRSs, of the state 
of affa�rs of the company as at 3� 
December 2006 and of �ts profit for 
the year then ended; and 

•  have been properly prepared �n 
accordance w�th the Compan�es Acts, 
�963 to 2006.

We have obta�ned all the �nformat�on 
and explanat�ons we cons�dered 
necessary for the purposes of our aud�t. 
In our op�n�on proper books of account 
have been kept by the company. The 
company’s balance sheet and �ts profit 
and loss account are �n agreement w�th 
the books of account.

In our op�n�on the �nformat�on g�ven �n 
the Annual Report �s cons�stent w�th the 
financ�al statements.

The net assets of the Company, as stated 
�n the balance sheet are more than half 
the amount of �ts called-up share cap�tal 
and, �n our op�n�on, on that bas�s there 
d�d not ex�st at 3� December 2006 a 
financ�al s�tuat�on wh�ch, under Sect�on 
�0(�) of the Compan�es (Amendment) 
Act, �983, would requ�re the conven�ng 
of an extraord�nary general meet�ng of 
the Company.

Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants  
and Reg�stered Aud�tors Dubl�n 
�8 Apr�l 2007
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Basis Of Accounting

E�rGr�d plc �s a Company dom�c�led �n Ireland. These financ�al statements are for the year ended 3� December 2006. They are 
prepared under IFRS (Internat�onal F�nanc�al Report�ng Standards) as adopted by the EU (IFRS). They are covered by Internat�onal 
F�nanc�al Report�ng Standard (IFRS) � “F�rst-t�me Adopt�on of IFRS”, because they are the Company’s first EU IFRS compl�ant 
financ�al statements. They have been prepared �n accordance w�th those EU IFRS and IFRIC �nterpretat�ons �ssued and effect�ve as 
at 3� December 2006. 

The Company’s financ�al statements were prepared �n accordance w�th Ir�sh Generally Accepted Account�ng Pr�nc�ples (Ir�sh GAAP) 
unt�l 3� December 2005. These standards d�ffer �n some areas from EU IFRS. In prepar�ng the Company’s financ�al statements, 
certa�n account�ng, valuat�on and consol�dat�on methods appl�ed prev�ously �n the financ�al statements have been amended to 
comply w�th EU IFRS. 

The pol�c�es set out below have been cons�stently appl�ed to all years presented. 

At the date of author�sat�on of these financ�al statements, the follow�ng Standards and Interpretat�ons wh�ch have not been 
appl�ed �n these financ�al statements were �n �ssue but not yet effect�ve:

• IFRS 7:  F�nanc�al �nstruments: D�sclosures and the related amendments to IAS � on cap�tal d�sclosures
• IFRIC �:  Determ�n�ng whether an Arrangement conta�ns a Lease
• IFRIC 5:  R�ght to Interest ar�s�ng from Decomm�ss�on�ng, Restorat�on and Env�ronmental Rehab�l�tat�on Funds
• IFRIC 7:  Apply�ng the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 F�nanc�al Report�ng �n Hyper�nflat�onary Econom�cs
• IFRIC 8:  Scope IFRS 2
• IFRIC 9:  Reassessment of embedded der�vat�ves
• IFRIC �0: Inter�m report�ng and �mpa�rments
• IFRIC ��: IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transact�ons

The D�rectors ant�c�pate that the adopt�on of these Standards and Interpretat�ons �n future per�ods w�ll have no mater�al �mpact on 
the financ�al statements of the Company except for add�t�onal d�sclosures on cap�tal and financ�al �nstruments when the relevant 
standards come �nto effect for per�ods commenc�ng on or after 0� January 2007.

Revenue

Revenue pr�mar�ly represents the �ncome der�ved from the prov�s�on of electr�c�ty transm�ss�on serv�ces to customers dur�ng the 
year and excludes value added tax. Revenue �ncludes an assessment of serv�ces suppl�ed between the date of the last meter read�ng 
and the year end and �s stated net of value added tax. 

Where revenue rece�ved or rece�vable exceeds the max�mum amount perm�tted by regulatory agreements and adjustments w�ll be 
made to future pr�ces to reflect th�s over-recovery, no l�ab�l�ty �s recogn�sed. S�m�larly no asset �s recogn�sed where a regulatory 
agreement perm�ts adjustments to be made to future pr�ces �n respect of an under-recovery.

Leases

Operat�ng lease payments are recogn�sed as an expense on a stra�ght-l�ne bas�s over the lease term.

Foreign Currencies

The financ�al statements are expressed �n Euro (€).  

Transact�ons �n fore�gn currenc�es are recorded at the rates of exchange preva�l�ng at the dates of the transact�ons. At each Balance 
Sheet date, monetary �tems denom�nated �n fore�gn currenc�es are retranslated at the rates preva�l�ng at the Balance Sheet date. 
Income and expense �tems are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange d�fferences are recogn�sed �n the 
Income Statement �n the per�od wh�ch they ar�se. 

Statement of Accounting Policies
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Retirement Benefits

The cost of prov�d�ng benefits and the l�ab�l�t�es of defined benefit plans are determ�ned, us�ng the projected un�t cred�t method, 
w�th actuar�al valuat�ons be�ng carr�ed out at each Balance Sheet date.

Current serv�ce cost, �nterest cost and return on plan assets are recogn�sed �n the Income Statement. Actuar�al ga�ns and losses 
are recogn�sed �n full �n the per�od �n wh�ch they occur �n the Statement of Recogn�sed Income and Expense. Past serv�ce cost �s 
recogn�sed �mmed�ately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. Otherw�se, past serv�ce cost �s recogn�sed on a stra�ght 
l�ne bas�s over the average per�od unt�l the benefits become vested.

The defined benefit l�ab�l�ty recogn�sed �n the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obl�gat�on less 
any past serv�ce costs not yet recogn�sed and less the fa�r value of any plan assets. Defined benefit assets are also recogn�sed �n 
the Balance Sheet but are l�m�ted to the total of unrecogn�sed past serv�ce cost and the present value of ava�lable refunds and 
reduct�ons �n future contr�but�ons to the plan. 

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable �s based on taxable profit for the year. The Company’s l�ab�l�ty for current tax �s calculated us�ng tax rates 
that have been enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax �s recogn�sed on d�fferences between the carry�ng amounts of assets and l�ab�l�t�es �n the financ�al statements and the 
correspond�ng tax bases used �n the computat�on of taxable profit, and �s accounted for us�ng the Balance Sheet l�ab�l�ty method. 

Tangible Fixed Assets

Property, plant and equ�pment �s stated at cost less accumulated deprec�at�on and any accumulated �mpa�rment losses. 

Deprec�at�on �s charged so as to wr�te off the cost or valuat�on of assets over the�r est�mated useful l�ves, us�ng the stra�ght-l�ne 
method. The est�mated useful l�ves, res�dual values and deprec�at�on method are rev�ewed at each year end, w�th the effect of any 
changes �n est�mate accounted for on a prospect�ve bas�s. 

The deprec�at�on per�ods for the pr�nc�pal categor�es of property, plant and equ�pment are as follows:
• Motor veh�cles and equ�pment: 5 years
• IT and telecommun�cat�ons equ�pment: 3 to 8 years

Expend�ture on assets under construct�on �s cap�tal�sed and the value �s not deprec�ated unt�l the assets are �n use. 

The ga�n or loss ar�s�ng on the d�sposal or ret�rement of a tang�ble asset �s determ�ned as the d�fference between the sales 
proceeds and the carry�ng amount of the asset and �s recogn�sed �n the Income Statement.

Critical Accounting Judgements And Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparat�on of financ�al statements requ�res management to make est�mates and assumpt�ons that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and l�ab�l�t�es and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses dur�ng the report�ng per�od. Actual results may d�ffer 
from these est�mates. 

The follow�ng are the key sources of est�mat�on uncerta�nty that have a s�gn�ficant r�sk of caus�ng a mater�al adjustment to the 
carry�ng amounts of assets and l�ab�l�t�es w�th�n the next financ�al year:
• Rev�ew of useful l�ves of property, plant and equ�pment;
• Est�mat�on of l�ab�l�t�es for pens�on and other post-ret�rement costs; and
• Revenue recogn�t�on and assessment of unb�lled revenue.
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2006 2005

Notes € ‘000 € ‘000

Revenue 2 �39,9�3 6,695

D�rect costs (�03,6�7) -

Gross Profit 36,266 6,695

Other operat�ng costs � (23,700) (6,660)

Operat�ng profit �2,566 35

Interest Income 90� 52

Profit before taxat�on 6 �3,�70 87

Income tax expense 7 (�,976) (3�)

Profit for the year from cont�nu�ng operat�ons ��,�9� 53

                                      

On behalf of the Board:

Bernie Gray Dermot Byrne
Cha�rperson Ch�ef Execut�ve
�8 Apr�l 2007

Income Statement For The Year Ended 31 December 2006



EirGrid plc 2006 Annual Report and Accounts   37

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2006

  2006 2005

Notes € ‘000 € ‘000

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant & equ�pment 8 29,337 9

Deferred tax asset 7 2,526 �83

Total non-current assets 3�,863 �92

Current assets

Trade and other rece�vables 9 72,665 2,6�3

Cash and bank balances �3 63,758 2,390

Total current assets �36,�23 5,033

Total assets 168,286 5,225

Equity and Liabilities

Capital and reserves

Issued share cap�tal �� 38 38

Cap�tal reserve �6 �9,�82 -

Reta�ned earn�ngs �2 ��,�93 -

Total equ�ty 60,7�3 38

Non-current liabilities

Ret�rement benefit obl�gat�on �5 20,962 36

Total non-current l�ab�l�t�es 20,962 36

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables �0 86,6�� 5,�5�

Total current l�ab�l�t�es 86,6�� 5,�5�

Total l�ab�l�t�es �07,573 5,�87

Total equity and liabilities 168,286 5,225

On behalf of the Board:

Bernie Gray Dermot Byrne
Cha�rperson Ch�ef Execut�ve
�8 Apr�l 2007
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Statement Of Recognised Income And Expense For The Year Ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes € ‘000 € ‘000

Actuar�al ga�n/(loss) �n ret�rement benefit scheme �5 7 (�08)

Deferred tax attr�butable to actuar�al (loss)/ga�n (8) ��

Net expense recogn�sed d�rectly �n equ�ty (�) (9�)

Pr�or year adjustment - 8

Profit for the financ�al year ��,�9� 53

Total recogn�sed �ncome and expense for the year ��,�93 (33)
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2006 2005

Notes € ‘000 € ‘000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year     �3,�70 87

Deprec�at�on of property, plant and equ�pment 8 2,�93 ��

Interest �ncome (90�) (52)

Pens�on charge   (�,698) (555)

Pens�on contr�but�ons pa�d  933 53�

�3,99� 25

Movements in working capital

(Increase) �n trade and other rece�vables (70,022) (2,600)

Increase/(decrease) �n trade and other payables 8�,�56 (�,0�0)

Cash generated from operations 25,�28 (3,6�5)

Income taxes pa�d (27�) (�0�)

Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activities 25,�5� (3,7�6)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest rece�ved 77� ��

Purchase of non-current assets 8 (��,05�) -

Proceeds from d�sposal of non-current assets - �8

Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities (�3,280) 62

Cash flows from financing activities

Cap�tal �ntroduced �6 �9,�9� -

Net cash generated by financing activities �9,�9� -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6�,368 (3,65�)

Cash and cash equivalents at 01 January �3 2,390 6,0��

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 63,758 2,390

Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31 December 2006
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Notes To The Financial Statements

1. General Information

  E�rGr�d plc �s a publ�c l�m�ted Company, �ncorporated �n Ireland, establ�shed pursuant to S.I. No ��5 of 2000 – European 
Commun�t�es (Internal Market �n Electr�c�ty) Regulat�ons, 2000. E�rGr�d �s l�cenced by the Comm�ss�on for Energy Regulat�on as 
the Transm�ss�on System Operator �n Ireland. The reg�stered office of the Company �s 27 Lower F�tzw�ll�am Street, Dubl�n 2.

2. Revenue 

Revenue by geograph�c market 2006 2005

E'000 E'000

Ireland �36,7�7 6,695

UK 3,�66 -

Total �39,9�3 6,695

3.  Employees

  The average number of persons employed by the Company dur�ng the financ�al year was �2� (2005: 72), exclud�ng staff 
engaged on cap�tal projects. The total number of persons employed at 3� December 2006 was �83 (2005: 7�).

 The�r total remunerat�on, �nclud�ng execut�ve D�rectors’ salar�es, compr�sed: 
 

2006 2005

€ ‘000 € ‘000

Wages and salar�es 9,56� �,��7

Soc�al Welfare costs 623 ��3

Pens�on costs �,698 570

Total ��,885 5,�60

    
  Included w�th�n the average number of employees �s staff seconded from ESB. The charge for the year for the seconded staff 

was €�.8m (2005: n�l) and �t �s �ncluded w�th�n the wages and salar�es figure above.

4. Other Operating Costs
 

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Employee costs (note 3) ��,885 5,�60

Deprec�at�on of non-current assets 2,�93 ��

Operat�ons and ma�ntenance 9,622 �,�89

23,700 6,660
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5.  Public Service Obligation Levy

  The Publ�c Serv�ce Obl�gat�on (PSO) Levy �s an add�t�onal charge, determ�ned by the CER, relat�ng to the costs to ESB of 
purchas�ng peat-generated electr�c�ty and the output of renewable, susta�nable or alternat�ve forms of energy purchased under 
var�ous Government schemes. ESB �s obl�ged by Government to make these purchases �n the �nterests of secur�ty of supply and 
env�ronmental protect�on. The costs recovered through the levy equate to the add�t�onal costs of these purchases over and 
above the cost of electr�c�ty purchased at a market pr�ce. 

  All electr�c�ty supply compan�es are obl�ged to collect th�s charge from the�r customers. E�rGr�d, �n turn, collects the charge 
from the electr�c�ty supply compan�es and passes �t to ESB. As the �ncome rece�ved from the customers equates to the charge 
from ESB (except for an adm�n�strat�on charge), the �ncome and related cost are not �ncluded �n revenue and d�rect costs �n 
the Income Statement. The adm�n�strat�on charge �s �ncluded �n other operat�ng costs �n the Income Statement.

2006 2005

€ ‘000 € ‘000

PSO �ncome 30,3�5 -

PSO levy (30,339) -

Adm�n�strat�on charge 6 -

6.  Profit for the financial year

 The profit for the financ�al year �s stated after charg�ng the follow�ng:

2006 2005

€ ‘000 € ‘000

Deprec�at�on 2,�93 ��

D�rectors’ remunerat�on 

- fees ��9 68

- other emoluments 30� �86

Aud�tors’ remunerat�on �0 3

Operat�ng lease rentals 60 66
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7. Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities 
 

2006 2005

€ ‘000 € ‘000

Charge to Income Statement:

Current tax expense

Current tax �,787 97

Pr�or year under prov�s�on � 5

Deferred tax expense/(cred�t)

Or�g�nat�on and reversal of temporary d�fferences �88 (68)

Total charge to Income Statement �,976 3�

Charge/(cred�t) to Statement of Recogn�sed Income and Expense:

Deferred tax expense/(cred�t)

Or�g�nat�on and reversal of temporary d�fferences 8 (3)

Total   �,98� 3�

2006 2005

€ ‘000 € ‘000

Reconciliation of effective tax rate to standard tax rate:

Profit before taxat�on �3,�70 87

Taxat�on at standard rate of �2.5% (2005: �2.5%) �,68� ��

Effect of:

Income at h�gher tax rate ��� -

Or�g�nat�ng temporary d�fferences (6�) 68

Revers�ng temporary d�fferences (�25) -

Permanent t�m�ng d�fferences �8� �8

Current tax charge �,787 97

The expected standard tax rate from 0� January 2007 �s �2.5%.

2006 2005

€ ‘000 € ‘000

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset:

Open�ng deferred tax asset �83 �07

Deferred tax asset on pens�on obl�gat�on transferred (note �6) 2,5�0 -

Movement �n or�g�nat�ng t�m�ng d�fferences on cap�tal allowances (���) -

Movement on or�g�nat�ng and revers�ng t�m�ng d�fferences on pens�on charges (56) 76

Clos�ng deferred tax asset 2,526 �83
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8.  Property, Plant & Equipment
  

Motor veh�cles 
& equ�pment

IT &  
telecommun�cat�ons 

equ�pment

Assets under 
construct�on*

Total

€ ‘000 € ‘000 € ‘000 € ‘000

Cost

Balance as at 01 January 2005 75 -   -   75 

Add�t�ons -   -   -   -   

D�sposals (37) -   -   (37)

Balance as at 31 December 2005  38 -   -   38 

Assets transferred ** �2 �5,862 �,566   �7,�70 

Add�t�ons -   �38 �3,9�3 ��,05� 

D�sposals -   -   -   -   

Balance as at 31 December 2006  80 �6,000 �5,�79 3�,559 

Depreciation

Balance as at 01 January 2005   38 -   -   38 

Charge    �� -   -   �� 

D�sposals (20) - - (20)

Balance as at 31 December 2005  29 -   -  29 

Charge      �� 2,�82    -   2,�93 

D�sposals  -   -   -   -   

Balance as at 31 December 2006 �0 2,�82 -   2,222 

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2006 40 13,818 15,479 29,337 

Net Book Value as at 3� December 2005 9 -   -   9 

Net Book Value as at 0� January 2005 37 -   -   37 

 *  Assets under construct�on �nclude an amount of €�3.�m for the S�ngle Electr�c�ty Market. Th�s expend�ture relates largely 
to IT software and assoc�ated consultancy costs and represents 75% of the total expend�ture on th�s project. The rema�n�ng 
25% of the cost �s borne by SONI, w�th whom there �s an agreement �n place for the development of the S�ngle  
Electr�c�ty Market. 

 **  Assets transferred represents assets wh�ch were transferred to the Company as part of the E�rGr�d cap�tal�sat�on process. 
These assets were taken on at the market value as at 0� July 2006. See note �6 for further deta�ls. 
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9.  Trade and Other Receivables
2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Trade rece�vables 2,603 2,607

Prepayments and accrued �ncome 6,�93 36

Unb�lled rece�vables 60,8�0 -

VAT recoverable 830 -

Other rece�vables 2,229 -

72,665 2,6�3

  
  Unb�lled rece�vables cons�sts of �ncome for the months of November and December 2006 wh�ch, �n compl�ance w�th the 

regulatory t�metable, had not been b�lled as at 3� December 2006. Included �n th�s amount �s €�0m (2005: n�l) for PSO 
�ncome for December 2006 (see note 5).

10.  Trade and Other Payables 
2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Trade payables 25,805 �

Accruals 58,763 �,555

Taxat�on and Soc�al Welfare 2,0�3 595

86,6�� 5,�5�

Taxat�on and Soc�al Welfare compr�ses of the follow�ng:

Corporat�on tax �,30� 23

PAYE/PRSI 7�2 �30

VAT - ��2

2,0�3 595

  The greater part of the trade payables balance relates to the charge payable to ESB as Transm�ss�on Asset Owner. Accruals 
cons�sts ma�nly of the d�rect costs of runn�ng the transm�ss�on system for the months of November and December 2006 for 
wh�ch �nvo�ces had not been rece�ved as at 3� December 2006. Included �n th�s amount �s €�5m (2005: n�l) for PSO levy for 
December 2006 (see note 5).

11. Issued Share Capital
 2006 2005

 €’000 €’000

Authorised:

30,000 ord�nary shares of €�.25 each 38 38

Allotted, called-up and fully paid:

30,000 Ord�nary shares of €�.25 each 38 38
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12. Retained Earnings 
2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Balance at beg�nn�ng of year - ��

Profit for the year ��,�9� 53

Actuar�al ga�n/(loss) (note �5) 7 (�07)

Deferred tax on actuar�al loss (8) �3

Balance at end of year ��,�93 -

 

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents
 2006 2005

 €’000 €’000

Cash at bank and �n hand 63,758  2,390

                                           
 Approx�mately 90% of the cash balance �s held �n fixed term depos�t accounts.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

 Operating leases 
 Amounts due on operat�ng leases, wh�ch are �n respect of the Company’s veh�cle fleet, are as follows: 

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

W�th�n one year 77 52

Between two and five years ��2 80

�89 �32

Capital commitments

Expend�ture contracted for not prov�ded for �n the financ�al statements,  
relat�ng to the S�ngle Electr�c�ty Market:

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Total 25,600 -



�6 EirGrid plc 2006 Annual Report and Accounts

15. Pension Commitments

  The Company operates a defined benefit pens�on plan for employees and execut�ve D�rectors. In add�t�on, employees who 
transferred from ESB as part of the transfer scheme (see note �6), can cont�nue to be members of the ESB Superannuat�on 
Fund for wh�ch the Company �s an attached employer. The contr�but�on made �n respect of the current year �nto the plan was 
€�.087m (2005: €0.5�3m).

  The most recent actuar�al valuat�ons of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obl�gat�on were carr�ed out at 
3� December 2006 under the requ�rements of Internat�onal Account�ng Standard �9: Employee Benefits (IAS �9). The present 
value of the defined benefit obl�gat�on, and the related current serv�ce cost and past serv�ce cost, were measured us�ng the 
projected un�t cred�t method.

  The following table sets out the reconciliation of the amounts included in the Balance Sheet in respect of the defined 
benefit pension plans:

 2006 2005

 €’000 €’000

Present value of funded defined pens�on obl�gat�ons 39,��9 �,969

Fa�r value of plan assets �8,�87 �,933

Net l�ab�l�ty before deferred tax 20,962 36

Deferred tax on net pens�on obl�gat�on (2,6�3) (�)

Net l�ab�l�ty after deferred tax �8,3�9 32

 

 The amounts recognised in the Income Statement are as follows:  

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Current serv�ce cost �,27� 53�

Interest cost 88� 55

Expected return on plan assets (�57) (3�)

Amount �ncluded �n other operat�ng costs �,698 555

                                                
 The amounts recognised in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense are as follows: 

 2006 2005

 €’000 €’000

Actuar�al (ga�ns)/losses (7) �07

Amount �ncluded �n Statement of Recogn�sed Income and Expense (7) �07

Notes To The Financial Statements
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 The following table sets out the movement in the defined benefit obligation from the prior to the current valuation date: 

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Open�ng defined benefit obl�gat�on �,969 �,�03

Current serv�ce cost �nclud�ng employee contr�but�ons �,809 723

Interest cost 88� 55

Actuar�al losses �,�6� 97

Benefits pa�d (3�2) (9)

L�ab�l�t�es assumed on employee transfer (note �6) 33,665 -

Clos�ng defined benefit obl�gat�on 39,��9 �,969

 The following table sets out the movement in the fair value of the plan assets from the prior to the current valuation date: 

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Open�ng fa�r value of plan assets �,933 �,�50

Expected return on plan assets �57 3�

Ga�ns/(losses) on plan assets �,�7� (�0)

Employer contr�but�ons �,087 579

Employee contr�but�ons 538 �89

Benefits pa�d (3�2) (9)

Assets assumed on employee transfer (note �6) �3,3�3 -

Clos�ng fa�r value of plan assets �8,�87 �,933
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15. Pension Commitments (continued)

 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

2006 2005

Valuat�on method Projected Un�t Projected Un�t

D�scount rate �.75% �.50%

State pens�on �ncrease �.00% 3.50%

Salary �ncreases �.00% plus scale 3.50% plus scale

Pens�on �ncreases �.00% 3.50%

Inflat�on 2.50% 2.00%

Mortal�ty Table PXA 92 (C2020) PXA 80 (C2020)
  

 The fair value of the plan assets in the pension fund and the expected rate of return at the end of the year are: 

          Expected Return          Fa�r Value

2006 2005 2006 2005

% % €’000 €’000

Equ�t�es 7.00% n/a ��,006 -

Government Bonds 3.75% n/a �,557 -

Corporate Bonds �.50% n/a - -

Property 6.00% n/a �,970 -

Cash 3.00% 2.25% 65� �,933

Fa�r value of plan assets �8,�87 �,933

Notes To The Financial Statements
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16. Capital Reserve

  In accordance w�th Regulat�on �3 of SI ��5 of European Commun�t�es (Internal Market �n Electr�c�ty) Regulat�ons 2000, as 
amended by SI 60 of European Commun�t�es (Internal Market �n Electr�c�ty) Regulat�ons 2005 (‘S� ��5’), E�rGr�d and ESB 
entered �nto a Transfer Scheme dated 0� July 2006. Under the terms of the Transfer Scheme E�rGr�d rece�ved a cap�tal�sat�on 
payment from ESB �n the amount of €67m, cons�st�ng of assets w�th a value of €�7.5m and cash of €�9.5m. 

 
  Under the Transfer Scheme certa�n members of ESB staff transferred the�r employment to E�rGr�d and, �n accordance w�th 

Regulat�on �7(�3) of SI ��5, E�rGr�d assumed respons�b�l�ty for the pens�on ent�tlements of these transferr�ng employees. 
Us�ng the assumpt�ons outl�ned �n note �5, E�rGr�d’s actuary valued the l�ab�l�t�es transferred to the E�rGr�d Fund at €33.7m, 
cons�stent w�th the methodology spec�fied �n IAS �9 ‘Employee Benefits’. Regulat�on �7(�3) of SI ��5 also spec�fied the 
bas�s on wh�ch assets would be transferred from the ESB Pens�on Fund to the E�rGr�d Pens�on Fund. The value of the assets 
transferred was €�3.3m. A deferred tax asset of €2.5m arose on the net pens�on obl�gat�on transferred.

 Reconciliation of the capital reserve:

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Open�ng balance - -

Cap�tal�sat�on payment rece�ved from ESB:

Cash �9,�9� -

Property, plant and equ�pment (note 8) �7,�70 -

66,96� -

Pens�on obl�gat�on transferred (33,665) -

Fa�r value of pens�on plan assets transferred �3,3�3 -

Deferred tax asset on pens�on obl�gat�on transferred 2,5�0 -

Clos�ng balance �9,�82 -
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17. Financial Risk Management

 The Company does not use complex financ�al �nstruments w�th�n the bus�ness.

  The key financ�al r�sk that the Company �s exposed to relates to l�qu�d�ty and cap�tal r�sk both ar�s�ng from day to day 
operat�ons and from key cap�tal expend�ture projects.

 
  The Company manages �ts l�qu�d�ty and cap�tal r�sk for day to day operat�ons through the regulatory process for establ�sh�ng 

tar�ffs w�th the Comm�ss�on for Energy Regulat�on (CER) and through �nternal budget�ng and mon�tor�ng of var�ances. The 
Company has negot�ated stand-by fac�l�t�es w�th external banks to support cash flow project�ons and requ�rements.

  For cap�tal expend�ture, the Company has �n place key expend�ture approval processes and project management and cost 
centre analys�s to mon�tor and manage expend�ture.

18. Related Party Transactions

  In common w�th many other ent�t�es, E�rGr�d plc deals �n the normal course of bus�ness w�th other government sponsored 
bod�es such as ESB.

  E�rGr�d plc �s a l�m�ted Company establ�shed pursuant to S.I. No. ��5 of 2000 – European Commun�t�es (Internal Market �n 
Electr�c�ty) Regulat�ons, 2000.

  An Infrastructure Agreement �s �n place between E�rGr�d plc and ESB under the ausp�ces of the Comm�ss�on for Energy 
Regulat�on, �n relat�on to the roles of owner and operator of the transm�ss�on system. Dur�ng the year payments were made to 
ESB under th�s Agreement as follows:  
 

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Transm�ss�on Asset Owner charge 56,227 -

Connect�on contr�but�ons 7,996 -

6�,223 -

 At 3� December 2006 a total of €25.3m (2005: n�l) was payable to ESB under th�s Agreement.

 Board members had no benefic�al �nterest �n E�rGr�d at any t�me dur�ng the year.

  The remunerat�on of key management (those people hav�ng the author�ty and respons�b�l�ty for plann�ng, d�rect�ng and 
controll�ng the act�v�t�es of the company) dur�ng the year was as follows: 

2006 2005

€’000 €’000

Short-term benefits 790 229

Post-employment benefits �2� 37

9�� 266

Notes To The Financial Statements
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19. Basis of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (EU IFRS)

  The financ�al statements for the year ended 3� December 2006 are the first annual financ�al statements that comply w�th EU 
IFRS. The Company has appl�ed IFRS � �n prepar�ng the year end financ�al statements. The trans�t�on date for the Company �s 
0� January 2005. Th�s �s the date to wh�ch the open�ng Balance Sheet has been prepared. 

 
     In prepar�ng the open�ng EU IFRS pos�t�on, the Balance Sheet and Income Statement as prev�ously reported �n accordance 

w�th Ir�sh GAAP have been adjusted. An explanat�on of how the trans�t�on from GAAP to EU IFRS has affected prev�ously 
reported amounts �s set out �n the follow�ng tables.

 

 Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as at 01 January 2006 

          Effect of Trans�t�on to

GAAP EU IFRS EU IFRS

€’000 €’000 €’000

 Assets

 Non-current assets

 Property, plant & equ�pment 9 - 9

 Total non-current assets 9 - 9

 Current assets

 Trade and other rece�vables 2,82� � 2,825

 Cash and bank balances 2,390 - 2,390

 Total current assets 5,2�� � 5,2�5

 Total assets 5,220 4 5,224

 Equity and liabilites

 Capital and reserves

 Issued share cap�tal 38 - 38

 Cap�tal reserve - - -

 Reta�ned earn�ngs - - -

 Total equ�ty 38 - 38

 Non-current liabilities

 Ret�rement benefit obl�gat�on 32 � 36

 Total non-current l�ab�l�t�es 32 � 36
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  Under IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, any deferred tax asset arising on the pension obligation is required to be shown separately 
and not netted against the liability as permitted under GAAP. A deferred tax asset has been reclassified in the Balance 
Sheet. Finance costs, which were required to be shown separately in the Income Statement under GAAP, are included in other 
operating costs under IAS 19. There are no significant adjustments to the Cash Flow Statement under IAS as compared to that 
presented under previous GAAP.

20.	Approval	Of	Accounts

 The Board approved the accounts on 18 April 2007.

        Effect of Transition to

GAAP EU IFRS EU IFRS

€’000 €’000 €’000

	 Current	Liabilities

 Trade and other payables 5,150 - 5,150

 Total current liabilities 5,150 - 5,150

	 Total	liabilities 5,182 4 5,186

	 Total	equity	and	liabilities 5,220 4 5,224

	 Reconciliation	of	Income	Statement	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2005

 Revenue 6,695 - 6,695

 Direct costs - - -

 Gross profit 6,695 - 6,695

 Other operating costs (6,640) (20) (6,660)

                   

 Operating profit 55 (20) 35

 Interest income 52 - 52

 Interest cost and other financing charges (20) 20 -

                   

 Net interest cost and other financing charges 32 20 52

 Profit before taxation 87 - 87

 Income tax expense (34) - (34)

                   

	 Profit	for	the	year	from	continuing	operations 53 - 53

Notes	To	The	Financial	Statements
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Glossary

Ancillary Services Serv�ces, other than 
the product�on of energy, wh�ch are used 
to ensure the safe and secure operat�on 
of the power system.

Bilateral market The model of wholesale 
electr�c�ty market �n the Republ�c of 
Ireland unt�l November 2007. 

Capacity The max�mum cont�nuous 
power capab�l�ty of a system or a p�ece 
of equ�pment, measured �n megawatts 
(MW) or megavolt-amperes (MVA).

Constraint costs Payments made when 
the secure operat�on of the system 
requ�res changes to be �mposed on the 
market based schedules of generators. 

CCGT Comb�ned Cycle Gas Turb�ne.  

CER Comm�ss�on for Energy Regulat�on 
– the regulatory author�ty for gas and 
electr�c�ty �n the Republ�c of Ireland. 

Demand The quant�ty of electr�c�ty 
needed or consumed, measured �n 
megawatts (MW) or k�lowatts (kW).

Demand Customer A customer 
connected, or �n the process of 
connect�ng, to the electr�c�ty system 
for the purpose of ut�l�s�ng electr�c�ty.  
In the case of the transm�ss�on system 
these are typ�cally large �ndustr�al 
customers.

Distribution System The low and 
med�um voltage electr�c�ty network. 

Generator A customer connected, or 
�n the process of connect�ng, to the 
electr�c�ty system for the purpose of 
produc�ng electr�c�ty.

Grid Code The “rules of the road” for all 
part�es connect�ng to or us�ng the power 
system.

GWh G�ga Watt Hour – � m�ll�on k�lowatt 
hours (kWh).

Interconnector An electr�cal l�ne or 
cable, and assoc�ated equ�pment that 
connects the transm�ss�on system of one 
jur�sd�ct�on w�th another.

kV K�lo Volt(s) �,000 volts – a volt �s 
the un�t of electr�cal potent�al d�fference 
or electromot�ve force. 

kW K�lo Watt(s) �,000 watts – a watt �s 
the un�t of electr�cal power.

kWh K�lo Watt Hour – one kW used for 
one hour.

MW Mega Watt(s). Un�t of �  
m�ll�on watts.

NCC E�rGr�d’s Nat�onal Control Centre, 
wh�ch controls the operat�on of the 
transm�ss�on system and d�spatches 
generat�on �n real t�me.

Renewable energy Energy suppl�ed 
by sources that can be naturally and 
cont�nually replen�shed, such as w�nd 
power, hydro-electr�c power and b�omass.

SEM S�ngle Electr�c�ty Market – the 
new wholesale electr�c�ty market wh�ch 
w�ll �ntegrate the markets �n Northern 
Ireland and Ireland.

Suppliers Part�c�pants �n the electr�c�ty 
market who purchase power from 
generators and sell power to demand 
customers and other end-users.

SMO System Market Operator - The 
organ�sat�on, a jo�nt venture between 
E�rGr�d and SONI,  wh�ch w�ll run the 
new S�ngle Electr�c�ty Market.

SONI S.O.N.I. Ltd �s the transm�ss�on 
system operator for Northern Ireland. 

TSO Transm�ss�on System Operator.  
In Ireland the TSO �s E�rGr�d, wh�ch 
�s respons�ble for the plann�ng, 
development, operat�on and 
ma�ntenance of the transm�ss�on system.

TUoS Tariffs Transm�ss�on Use of System 
Tar�ffs. The charges pa�d by generators 
and demand customers for the use of the 
transm�ss�on system.
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